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EC Works Board Meeting Agenda
April 28, 2021 from 11:30am-1:30pm
Virtual Meeting Via Zoom or Phone

Phone one-tap: US: +12532158782,,87938103124# or +13462487799,,8793810312#
Meeting URL: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8793810312
Meeting ID: 879 3810312

11:30am: Call to Order - Gary North, Chair
a) Consent Agenda — Minutes from January EC Works Board Meeting — vote required
b) Consent Agenda —2019-2020 Audited Financial Statements (final audit) and
Management Letter (no vote required)
c) Consent Agenda — Final Form 990 Tax Return (no vote required)

11:45am: Appreciation of Service and Election of Officers — Gary North, Chair
a) Vote required for Election of Officers

12:00pm: Private Sector Industry Updates — Gary North, Chair
a) Manufacturing
b) Health Care
c) Construction
d) Technology

12:30pm: WorkSource Reopening Plans — Mel Barrett, Staff

12:40pm: General Group Updates and Discussion — All Present
a) Klamath and Lake RFP
b) Local Plan Update
c) Drive-Through Job Fair

Attachments:
e Draft January EC Works Board Meeting Minutes
e 2019-2020 Audited Financial Statements
e Management Letter
e Form 990 Tax Return
e WorkSource East Cascades Reopening Plan
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EC Works Board Meeting Agenda
April 28, 2021 from 11:30am-1:30pm
Virtual Meeting Via Zoom or Phone

Phone one-tap: US: +12532158782,,87938103124# or +13462487799,,8793810312#
Meeting URL: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8793810312
Meeting ID: 879 3810312

Board Members Present: Gary North (Chair), Jenni Newby, Dr. Marta Cronin, Robbie Smith,
David Burger, John Hanner, Maggie Hubbell, Trevor Janeck, Dave Aiken, Martin Campos-Davis,
Amy Gibbs, Wendy Peterson, Matt Bogatay, Michelle Alvarado, Bambi Bevill

Others Present: Todd Nell, Josh Hall, Derreck Degroot, Tony DeBone

Staff Present: Heather Ficht, Jessica Fitzpatrick, Jamie Kendellen, Melissa Barrett, Brenda
Stewart, Stephanie Tarntino

Board Members Absent: Nicole Hough, Mike Graham, Heather Tramp, Julie Matthews

e Consent Agenda: Meeting called to order at 11:34 am by Chair Gary North. The minutes of
the January meeting were presented and the Chair asked for a motion to approve the
minutes.

Motion: Martin moved to approve the minutes as presented, Marta seconded, and the
minutes were unanimously approved.

e Updated Audited Financial Statements: Jamie, staff, presented the updated audited
financials which were already presented to and approved by the Executive Committee. EC
Works received another clean audit! Members asked to direct any questions to Jamie.

e Tax Return: Jamie, staff, presented the draft 2019-2020 Tax Return (Form 990) which was
already presented to and approved by the Executive Committee and filed with the IRS. Main
highlights were that our statement of functional expenses shows that our budget is ~85%
program expenses, which is great as we want a high percentage for program. Additionally,
all of our fiscal policies have been updated to be in compliance. Again, any questions can be
directed to Jamie.

e Appreciation of Service and Election of Officers: Gary thanked Jenni Newby and Heather
Tramp for their service as this is their last meeting as Board Members. Gary then explained
the need to elect a treasurer and two other officer positions and requested volunteers. If
there are no volunteers, members can be appointed by the Chair.

After discussion, it was decided that members can let Heather know via email after the
meeting about officer positions, but a Treasurer needed to be elected at this meeting;
otherwise, an e-vote could be held, but that would require 100% of the Board to vote. After
Jamie and Heather explained that while this is formal position on the Board, it does not
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have additional responsibilities from the rest of the Executive Committee, Martin
volunteered to act as Treasurer.

Motion: Amy moved to approve Martin as Treasurer, John seconded, and Martin was
unanimously approved as Board Treasurer.

e Private Sector Industry Updates
Jessica Fitzpatrick, Staff (Manufacturing)

>

Shared an update on an incumbent worker grant that BasX in Redmond was
awarded in 2018 as BasX was just awarded fastest-growing manufacturer in the US.
In 2018, they began to struggle from rapid growth because they had to hire
individuals with no prior experience, so they applied to EC Works for a grant to
implement cross-training and certifications.

David Aiken, Tofurkey (Manufacturing — Hood River)

>

We are trying to source employees and develop a plan around retaining employees
and bringing more in. We're consistently recruiting up to 8 employees a week, and
we lose about 2, so not making a lot of progress. Also going through internal
processes to see what employees value and what we are doing well / poorly to try to
raise retention.

Brenda Stewart, Staff — Reporting for Jon Stark, Redmond Economic Development, Inc.
(Manufacturing — Central Oregon)

>

Just convened first meeting since November, talent pipeline challenges similar to
other sectors, not enough qualified applicants or not enough applicants period. The
collaborative wants to focus on connecting with existing leadership programs in the
coming year as well as making sure employers know about existing resources.
Another topic was power outages in certain areas effecting productivity, and
partners were going to see if this effects all areas or just some.

Trevor Janeck, St. Charles Health System (Health Care — Central Oregon)

>

>

We are in a war on talent environment, $16.75 an hour working full time is what you
need to be earning to better unemployment insurance.

CNAs still are growth opportunities, as we have homegrown partnerships we are
running, but these directly compete with unemployment benefits.

Burnout is a real thing for providers and nursing staff as well as leadership level.
Exceptionally busy during COVID, we have ads going out for nursing specifically,
turnover actually pretty good but we have to meet demand, at over 90% bed
capacity. Seeing turnover specifically at nurse leadership level, not really in finance
or support groups.

Matt Bogatay, Bogatay Construction (Construction — Klamath)

>

We are also suffering consequences of pandemic similar to others, mass downfall of
any talent to hire into the industry, have 6 open positions unable to fill. We are
cycling very young people through to see if we can even get people interested and
also struggling with management positions in the company.
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» Massive instability of Wood, Metal & PVC market causing large price increases to
bidding /current projects in contract.

» We see the forecast slowing in the private market as the uncertainty of the
regulations are continuing and shutdowns continue to be a threat. Public work
appears to be on an uptick, but pricing of materials has been putting projects on
hold due to estimates coming in way higher than anticipated.

Gary North, R & H Construction (Construction — Central Oregon)

» There are a lot of signs point to inflation on the whole. Lumber is up 300% y/y and
many other materials are seeing price increases as well as some level of schedule
uncertainty.

» The way contracts are written, we are often third tier with materials, our
expectation is that contracts stay in place, but contracts being pulled mid project to
subcontractors, creates huge issues to deal with, contractors having to eat those
costs.

Brenda Stewart, EC Works — (sharing insights from Curtis Homes in Hood River)

» Home sales in the Gorge are at all-time highs and inventory is at all-time lows. This is
creating great demand in the industry.

» Outside of lack of trades people our greatest challenge in The Gorge is a lack of
buildable land supply. It is really hard to develop in the Gorge and land is sparse.

» We continue to see growth but have an uphill battle with trades and land supply.

» Covid has created a unique environment within our industry to build a huge demand
for getting out of the city and have more room as you spend more time in your
home but our lack of trades makes it a challenge to face this demand.

Maggie Hubbell, Shift (Tech — Central Oregon)

» Finding qualified talent is difficult - shortage, especially engineers.

» Remote work is being embraced. Companies must get good at it which will in part
solve their employee pipeline problem. Must look outside of local. Managing well is
important as are solid HR policies, understanding legal and tax consequences is
necessary.

» Oregon generally doesn't pay as well as markets where (tech) talent may be. This
simply won't work if you want a great team.

» New technologies are being embraced more than ever - good for tech companies.

» All about talent —finding, keeping, managing well.

Wendy Peterson, Google (Tech — Gorge)

» Consistent labor scarcity in:

Construction, Electricians, Low Voltage/High Voltage/Fiber Optic, Machinists,
Industrial HYAC, Mechanical Engineering,
= Technical growth needs include updating all cabling, fiber optics, telecom -
there should be lots of jobs laying fiber optic cable
= |ndustrial HVAC - with these skills and if they get licensed, this kind of work
should be insulated through economy shifts

» Many existing training programs support the white-collar jobs in tech and thus can

delay construction and trades education which in turn delays progress
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> We need investment in infrastructure

Continued Discussion: Gary stated that all issues discussed are national issues, not
specific to us in OR. There was discussion around providing workforce housing and
opportunities at a national level to get resources and pushing the issue in Salem.
Additionally, there is never really attention to who workforce is, and it would be helpful
for advocacy to focus on this.

=  WorkSource Reopening Plans: Mel, staff, and the Local Leadership Teams have been
working on reopening plans (WorkSource Centers have been closed to public for in-
person services for some time). The regional plan and employee guide were submitted
to the Workforce System Executive Team in March and approved in April. It is a
comprehensive guide for staff to ensure health and safety in our WSO Centers, i.e
making sure we have the plexiglass needed, appropriate signage, and meeting areas
configured to maintain social distance, etc. The plan is included in the Board materials.
Heather clarified that WorkSource has been serving job seekers and business, but this
plan is about re-opening centers to in-person services.

= General Group Updates and Discussion

» Heather will send a summary of the advocacy requests for: Overall HECC-OWI
budget (we’re down $1.2M in state investments since 2015), SB623, HB2092 and
HB2820 as well as investments from American Rescue Plan. Additionally, she talked
to Exec Comm and Maggie and Wendy from the Board and they would love to get
volunteers (specifically private sector) to form an ad hoc committee related to
COVID and our target populations. We need to do a deeper dive with the data to
determine if our current strategies and plans are good or if we need to change to
really support recovery and reemploy people. If interested, follow back up with
Heather. Gary, Trevor and Dave Aiken volunteered to join the committee during the
meeting.

» Heather thanked the Board members who sat on the committee for the Klamath and
Lake RFPs, and congratulated Klamath Community College as they prevailed in both
Adult and Youth services contracts and will continue to be our provider.

» Heather shared that we got feedback that our Local Plan is looking pretty good, and
there are only a few areas we need to update, specifically clarity around the “how”
of doing things. There should not be material changes, but Heather will let Board
know if there are.

» Brenda is supporting planning for a drive-through job fair with colleagues in
WorkSource at the WS Redmond location. This will be a pilot program to see if we
can implement in all of our areas and this will take place Saturday, May 22.

» Stephanie will be reaching out to everyone to sign annual consent forms as we have
to have these for each program year. We are being monitored by US DOL in June so
please sign and get back to us ASAP!
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>

>

Dr. Cronin let the Board know that the aviation construction project has been
completed and enroliment is up!

Gary reiterated need for people to sign up for officer positions and thanked the
group for a great discussion and charged everyone with finding ways to solve the
issues that were brought up.

Maggie stated that it is important to have representation from all different
industries in the ad hoc committee, as well as to have clarity about what is the
actual question we are asking. She said she would volunteer to speak at the
committee for tech, but would not have perspective from other industries.
Bambi asked that the Board remember Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) when
attempting to hire for open positions and she is there to assist. As we are coming
out of this pandemic, people will experience new disabilities which could impact
employment and working with VR can help.

e Meeting was adjourned by Chair Gary North at 12:54 pm.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

East Cascades Workforce Investment Board
dba East Cascades Works

Bend, Oregon

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of East Cascades Workforce Investment Board
dba East Cascades Works (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position
as of June 30, 2020, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

The Right People Beside You. ~ BEND 300 SW Columbia Street ~ EUGENE 260 Country ClubRoad ~ HILLSBORO 5635 NE Elam Young Pkwy.
s Suite 201 Suite 100 Suite 100
PSpRsRl Bend, OR 97702 Eugene, OR 97401 Hillsboro, OR 97124
phone (541) 382-3590 phone (541) 687-2320 phone (503) 648-0521

fax (541) 382-3587 fax (541) 485-0960 fax (503) 648-2692



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of East Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works as of June
30, 2020, and the changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 22,
2021, on our consideration of East Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works’
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of East Cascades Workforce Investment
Board dba East Cascades Works’ internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering East Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works’ internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

%W@ v il A0

Jones & Roth, P.C.
Eugene, Oregon
February 22, 2021
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EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
dba EAST CASCADES WORKS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2020

Assets
Current assets
Cash $ 397,464
Cash - restricted 160,165
Grants receivable 311,008
Prepaid expenses 10,519
Total current assets 879,156
Long-term assets
Cash - restricted 20,776
Operating lease right-of-use assets 56,670
Deposits 3,200
Total long-term assets 80,646
Total assets $ 959,802

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 457,833
Accrued payroll and related benefits 23,452
Contracts payable 14,200
Unearned revenue 205,367
Operating lease liabilities 31,502
Total current liabilities 732,354
Long-term liabilities
Contracts payable 28,400
Unearned revenue 20,776
Operating lease liabilities 27,061
Total long-term liabilities 76,237
Total liabilities 808,591
Net assets
Net assets with donor restrictions 133,672
Net assets without donor restrictions 17,539
Total net assets 151,211
Total liabilities and net assets $ 959,802

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE INVESTMENT
dba EAST CASCADES WORKS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

BOARD

Net Assets Net Assets
Without Donor With Donor Total
Restrictions Restrictions Net Assets
Revenues
Government grants $ 4,311,289 $ - $ 4,311,289
Local revenue 38,649 295,302 333,951
Program income 137,622 - 137,622
Special event revenue, net of expense 16,379 - 16,379
Donations 6,024 45,000 51,024
Miscellaneous revenue 2,327 - 2,327
In-kind revenue 1,093 - 1,093
Interest income 381 - 381
Net assets released from restrictions 206,630 (206,630) -
Total revenues 4,720,394 133,672 4,854,066
Expenses
Program activity:
Employment and training 4,501,459 - 4,501,459
Supporting services:
Management and general 236,869 - 236,869
Total expenses 4,738,328 - 4,738,328
Change in net assets (17,934) 133,672 115,738
Net assets, beginning of year 35,473 - 35,473
Net assets, end of year $ 17,539 $ 133,672 $ 151,211

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
dba EAST CASCADES WORKS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 115,738
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Grants receivable (192,112)
Prepaid expenses 4,374
Operating lease right-of-use assets 31,423
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounts payable 10,704
Accrued payroll and related benefits 3,928
Contracts payable 42,600
Unearned revenue 126,856
Operating lease liabilities (32,676)

Net cash provided by operating activities 110,835

Net increase in cash and restricted cash 110,835
Cash and restricted cash, beginning of year 467,570
Cash and restricted cash, end of year $ 578,405

As presented in the Statement of Financial Position:

Cash $ 397,464
Cash - restricted, short-term 160,165
Cash - restricted, long-term 20,776

$ 578,405

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD

dba EAST CASCADES WORKS

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Personnel costs
Legal
Professional services
Office expense
Occupancy
Travel
Conferences, conventions, and meetings
Insurance
Other expenses:
Payments to grant subrecipient providers
WorkSource Oregon center expenses
One Stop Operator
Program projects:
COVID-19 Layoff Aversion
Crook County SD - STEM
Apprenticeship USA
Sectors Projects
Youth Career Connect
Warm Springs Future Ready
Industry Cohort Training
Incumbent Worker Training
Diversity Equity and Inclusion
Other
Fees and taxes
Memberships
Printing
Staff training
Itrac database
Program Outreach
In-kind expense

Total functional expenses

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

Program Supporting
Activity Services
Employment Management
and Training and General Total
$ 483,245 180,716 $ 663,961
- 67 67
- 18,025 18,025
2,824 961 3,785
37,124 12,658 49,782
10,473 3,570 14,043
2,922 996 3,918
- 4,411 4,411
2,817,761 - 2,817,761
52,492 - 52,492
29,844 2,985 32,829
226,791 - 226,791
111,630 - 111,630
181,601 - 181,601
49,403 - 49,403
71,000 - 71,000
87,006 - 87,006
68,000 - 68,000
74,330 - 74,330
47,300 - 47,300
99,757 - 99,757
- 6,950 6,950
9,230 3,147 12,377
1,560 532 2,092
5,427 1,851 7,278
30,217 - 30,217
429 - 429
1,093 - 1,093
$ 4,501,459 $ 236,869 $ 4,738,328
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EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
dba EAST CASCADES WORKS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity

East Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works (EC Works or the
Organization) was formed on July 1, 2015, as a 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation organized in the state
of Oregon. The Organization services a ten county area in Oregon, including Crook, Deschutes,
Gilliam, Hood River, Jefferson, Klamath, Lake, Sherman, Wasco, and Wheeler Counties.

EC Works is a workforce development organization dedicated to assisting employers in recruiting and
retaining employees and helping individuals find employment and progress in their careers.
Specifically, the Organization is charged with strategic planning, oversight, and administrative
responsibility for the public workforce system including, but not limited to, those funded under the
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014 (WIOA). The WIOA requires that each workforce
area designated by the Governor form a Local Workforce Development Board. The Board of Directors
of EC Works was designated to meet this requirement for the geographic area of the counties in
Oregon noted above.

Budget Policy

The administrative and fiscal staff in consultation with the Treasurer prepare a draft budget for
modification and approval by the Executive Committee. Once approved by the Executive Committee,
it is then submitted to the Central Oregon Workforce Consortium (COWC) for adoption. The COWC
consists of one County Commissioner or Judge from each county serviced by EC Works and is
charged with annual budget adoption.

There is no legal requirement that expenditures do not exceed appropriations; however, it is Board
practice to limit expenditures to the amount appropriated.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting wherein revenues
are reported when earned and expenses are reported when incurred. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all the eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met. Expenditure-driven grants are recorded as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been
incurred and all other grant requirements have been met.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the program have been summarized on a functional basis in the accompanying
statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among program and supporting
services benefited. EC Works’ sole program is Employment and Training Services. This program is
charged with planning, oversight, and administrative responsibility for local job training programs for at
risk populations in the area.

EC Works allocates costs between program and support activities based on a cost allocation plan. Most
of EC Works’ operating expenses are allocated to program and support activities based on employee
timecards unless the item of cost can be specifically traced to a program related activity. Subrecipient
expenses are 100 percent program.

-7-
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EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
dba EAST CASCADES WORKS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
Accounting Standards Updates

EC Works early adopted the requirements of Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-18,
Statement of Cash Flows: Restricted Cash, during the year ended June 30, 2019. This update
supersedes accounting standards that exist under current GAAP and makes improvements to
address identified issues about current financial reporting for not-for-profit entities. Under the new
standard, not-for-profits are required to present on the statement of cash flows the line item
descriptions and amounts from the statement of financial position that total the cash balance at the
end of the fiscal year.

EC Works early adopted the requirements of ASU 2016-02, Leases, during the year ended June 30,
2019. This update supersedes accounting standards that exist under current GAAP and makes
improvements to address identified issues about current financial reporting for not-for-profit entities.
Under the new standard, lessees are required to report right-of-use assets and liabilities for operating
and financing leases.

EC Works adopted the requirements of ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting
Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, during the year ended June 30, 2020.
ASU 2018-08 assists entities in evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as
contributions or exchange transactions. The standard effectively excludes contributions from the
requirements of ASU 2014-09 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) and related
subsequently issued clarifying ASUs. EC Works adopted the new standard effective July 1, 2019,
using a modified prospective approach in these financial statements. There was no change to
previously recognized revenue. EC Works elected to delay implementation of ASU 2014-09 pursuant
to ASU 2020-05 which delayed the implementation date for EC Works to July 1, 2020.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets

Cash
Cash consists of cash on hand and demand deposits deposited in U.S. Bank accounts.

Receivables

Receivables are recorded in accordance with the policies enumerated above. Management of EC
Works considers all amounts included in grants receivable to be collectible; therefore, no provision
for uncollectible accounts has been made.

EC Works receives federal funds from the U.S. Department of Labor passed through the state of
Oregon, as well as several other nonfederal grants. The amount receivable represents contract
billings and cash requests, relating to expenditures incurred through the end of the program year,
which had not been received at June 30, 2020.

Capital assets
Capital assets are defined by EC Works as assets with an initial individual cost of $5,000 or

greater and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair value at the date of donation.
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EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
dba EAST CASCADES WORKS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets, continued

Capital assets, continued
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the
related assets.

State and federal grantor agencies retain a reversionary interest in all capital assets that are
purchased with state and federal funding.

EC Works had no capital assets as of June 30, 2020.

Compensated absences payable

EC Works revised the time off policy during the year ended June 30, 2018, to include a provision
for paid time off which does not vest or carry over to subsequent years. As such, no liability for
unpaid time off has been accrued as of June 30, 2020.

Unearned revenue

Unearned revenue totaling $226,143 as of June 30, 2020 mostly consists of funds received for
expenditure-driven grants restricted to use in future periods by either time or donor restrictions.
$68,776 of the balance relates to a grant received from Central Oregon Health Council (see Note
6 Restricted Cash), which $48,000 is expected to be earned in the year ending June 30, 2021
and is classified as current, with the remaining balance of $20,776 expected to be earned
subsequent to June 30, 2021 and is classified as long-term.

Net assets
EC Works reports net assets as changes in net assets with donor restrictions and net assets
without donor restrictions.

o Net Assets with Donor Restrictions — The part of net assets of a not-for-profit entity that is
subject to donor-imposed restrictions (donors include other types of contributors, including
makers of certain grants).

o Net Assets without Donor Restrictions — The part of net assets of a not-for-profit entity that
is not subject to donor-imposed restrictions, including Board-designated net assets (self-
imposed limits by action of the governing board) that may be earmarked for future
programs, investment, contingencies, purchase or construction of fixed assets, or other
uses.

EC Works reduces net assets with donor restriction amounts, if any, first when expenditures are
incurred for purposes for which restricted and unrestricted amounts are available.
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EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
dba EAST CASCADES WORKS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Income Taxes

EC Works is exempt from income tax under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c)(3) and is
only subject to tax on income unrelated to its exempt purposes, unless that income is otherwise
excluded by the IRC. The Organization’s federal Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax
return (Form 990) and state of Oregon Form CT-12 for the year ended June 30, 2020, are subject to
examination by the Internal Revenue Service and Oregon Department of Revenue, respectively,
generally for three years after filed.

Management evaluated EC Works’ tax positions, including unrelated business income, if any, and
concluded that EC Works had taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the financial
statements to comply with the provisions of this guidance.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
reporting amounts of certain assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. Actual results may differ from
such estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

EC Works maintains its cash and bank deposit accounts in certain financial institutions. Interest and
noninterest bearing accounts are guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
up to $250,000.

All deposits not covered by FDIC insurance are covered by the Public Funds Collateralization
Program (PFCP) of the state of Oregon. Deposits in excess of FDIC coverage with institutions
participating in the Oregon PFCP are collateralized with securities held by the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Seattle in the name of the institution. The PFCP is a shared liability structure for participating
bank depositories, better protecting public funds though still not guaranteeing that all funds are 100
percent protected.

EC Works has not experienced any loss in such accounts.

Commitments and Contingencies

EC Works leases an office suite under a non-cancelable operating lease that expires on May 31,
2021. Base rent payments were $2,461 per month from July 1, 2019 through May 31, 2020, and
$2,535 per month beginning June 1, 2020. Total rent includes base rent plus a portion of
maintenance, repair, and overhead on the building and common areas. Rent expense, including
common area charges, totaled $39,028 for the year ended June 30, 2020. The lease includes
scheduled 3 percent annual rent escalation clauses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Commitments and Contingencies, continued

EC Works determined that this agreement does include a lease with a non-cancelable lease term in
excess of one year, and as such this agreement has been included in the calculation of the operating
lease right-of-use asset and operating lease liability. The discount rate used is the risk-free 5-year
Treasury bill rate in effect at lease inception, 1.55 percent. Total base lease expense recognized as
a result of the recognition of the right-of-use asset and lease liability totaled $28,358 for the year
ended June 30, 2020 and this amount has been included in expense.

EC Works subleases two office spaces within its office suite to the Oregon Employment Department.
This operating lease expired on June 30, 2020, and is currently on a month-to-month agreement until
the end of the prime lease term of May 31, 2021. For the year ended June 30, 2020, monthly payments
were $810 per month ($9,720 per year), which has been included in income. The lease includes two
2-year renewal options. EC Works determined that this agreement does include a lease, however,
the non-cancelable lease term is less than 12 months; therefore, this agreement has not been
included in the calculation of the operating lease right-of-use asset and operating lease liability.

EC Works leases office spaces for the WorkSource Oregon center located in the Hood River, Oregon
area. This operating lease expired on June 30, 2020 and includes a 1-year renewal option exercised
by EC Works. For the year ended June 30, 2020, monthly payments were $395 per month, and
$4,740 has been included in expense for the year. The base rent is scheduled to increase 3 percent
per year. EC Works determined that this agreement does include a lease, however, the non-
cancelable lease term is less than 12 months; therefore, this agreement has not been included in the
calculation of the operating lease right-of-use asset and operating lease liability.

EC Works leases office spaces for the WorkSource Oregon center located in The Dalles, Oregon
area. This operating lease expired on June 30, 2020, and includes monthly payments totaling $954
per month and $11,448 has been included in expense for the year. EC Works renewed the lease in
July 2020. The lease includes an option to extend the agreement. EC Works determined that this
agreement does include a lease, however, the non-cancelable lease term is less than 12 months;
therefore, this agreement has not been included in the calculation of the operating lease right-of-use
asset and operating lease liability.

EC Works leases office spaces for the WorkSource Oregon center located in Bend, Oregon area.
This operating lease expired on June 30, 2020 and includes monthly payments totaling $1,260 per
month, and $15,120 has been included in expense for the year. EC Works renewed the lease in July
2020. The lease renewal includes an option to extend the agreement in accordance with the Oregon
Employment Department’s exercised Prime Lease extension options. EC Works determined that this
agreement does include a lease, however, the non-cancelable lease term is less than 12 months;
therefore, this agreement has not been included in the calculation of the operating lease right-of-use
asset and operating lease liability.

EC Works leases office spaces for the WorkSource Oregon center located in Redmond, Oregon area.
This operating lease expired on June 30, 2020 and includes monthly payments totaling $135 per month,
and $1,618 has been included in expense for the year. EC Works renewed the lease in July 2020. The
lease renewal includes an option to extend the agreement in accordance with the Oregon Employment
Department’s exercised Prime Lease extension options. EC Works determined that this agreement
does include a lease, however, the non-cancelable lease term is less than 12 months; therefore, this
agreement has not been included in the calculation of the operating lease right-of-use asset and
operating lease liability.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Commitments and Contingencies, continued

Beginning July 1, 2017, EC Works entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with a
subrecipient to reimburse lease payments for four Central Oregon WorkSource center locations in
Bend, Redmond, Madras, and Prineville. EC Works will continue reimbursement payments until EC
Works assumes the leases. As of June 30, 2020, EC Works has assumed the leases for all locations.
For the 2019-2020 fiscal year, EC Works reimbursed the subrecipient $7,045 for the Madras location
including common area charges, and this amount has been included in expense. EC Works terminated
the Madras lease as of September 30, 2019, and the Prineville lease as of June 30,2019, and as such,
there is no further obligation under the MOU with Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council.

EC Works leases office spaces for the WorkSource Oregon center located in Klamath Falls, Oregon
area. This operating lease expired on June 30, 2020 and includes monthly payments totaling $101 per
month, and $1,211 has been included in expense for the year. EC Works renewed the lease in June
2020. EC Works determined that this agreement does include a lease, however, the non-cancelable
lease term is less than 12 months; therefore, this agreement has not been included in the calculation
of the operating lease right-of-use asset and operating lease liability.

EC Works leases office spaces for the WorkSource Oregon center located in Lakeview, Oregon area.
This operating lease expires on January 1, 2023 and includes monthly payments totaling $375 per
month, and $4,500 has been included in expense for the year. The lease includes an option to extend
the agreement for an additional five-year period. EC Works determined that this agreement does
include a lease with a non-cancelable lease term in excess of one year, and as such this agreement
has been included in the calculation of the operating lease right-of-use asset and operating lease liability
including the option to extend. The discount rate used is the risk-free 10-Year Treasury bill rate in effect
at lease inception, 2.46 percent.

During the year ended June 30, 2019, EC Works early implemented ASU 2016-02, Leases. EC Works
made the following elections as a result of implementing this standard:

o EC Works elects not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities that arise from short-
term leases for any class of underlying assets. Short-term leases are accounted for by
recognizing the lease payments in the change in net assets on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. The short-term lease cost and commitments for each short-term lease is
disclosed above.

o EC Works elects to use the risk-free rate in the calculation of operating lease liabilities for all
leases utilizing the Treasury rates in effect at lease inception with terms closely tied to the terms
of the leases.

o EC Works elects the practical expedient to not separate lease components from non-lease
components for all underlying assets.
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2. Commitments and Contingencies, continued
Future minimum lease payments for noncancelable leases are as follows:

For the Year Ending June 30,

2021 $ 32,388
2022 4,500
2023 4,500
2024 4,500
2025 4,500
Thereafter 11,250
$ 61,638

A reconciliation of future minimum lease payments for non-cancelable leases to operating lease liability
as reported in the statement of financial position for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Future minimum lease payments $ 61,638
Discounted to present value (3,075)
Operating lease liability $ 58,563
Summary of lease information is as follows:
Operating lease cost $ 32,858
Short-term lease cost 41,176
Sublease income (9,720)
Total lease cost $ 64,314
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 34,111
Weighted-average remaining lease term — operating leases 55 months
Weighted average discount rate — operating leases 2.03%

Government-supported programs are subject to audit by the applicable granting agencies. The possible
disallowances by the granting agencies of any item charged to the program cannot be determined until
such time when the audits occur. Therefore, no provision for any potential disallowances that may result
from such audits has been made in the accompanying financial statements.

3. Risk Management
EC Works is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. EC Works maintains

coverage through commercial insurance companies for risk of loss. There were no insurance
settlements exceeding insurance coverage during the year ended June 30, 2020.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Risk Management, continued

EC Works contracted with several subrecipient organizations to provide training and employment
services during the year ended June 30, 2020. While federal and state requirements and compliance
for provisions of services are defined and rather strict, there are other local organizations capable of
providing the necessary services in the event any of the three primary contracted service providers
cease to perform or operate per the terms of their contracts. Combined, the three primary providers
in EC Works’ three regions (North, Central, and South) were paid $2,817,761 during the year ended

June 30, 2020.

4. Related Party Transactions

EC Works has entered into contracts with organizations whose Boards of Directors include members
of the COWC, or whose employees included members of the EC Works Board of Directors. The
conflicted party is precluded from voting on budget and contract approval where a conflict is present.

The following contracts were in effect during the year ended June 30, 2020:

Agency

Funding
Title

Expense

Payable

Central Oregon Community College
Central Oregon Community College
Central Oregon Community College
Central Oregon Community College
Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council
Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council

Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council

Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council

Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council

WIOA Title 1B

State of
Oregon
General Funds

Central Oregon
Health Council

DOL
Apprenticeship
USA

WIOA Title 1B

WIOA Title 1B
Future Ready

DHS 2019
TANF Summer
Youth
Employment
Program

GED
Wraparound

DOL
Apprenticeship
USA
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$

111,890

35,471

21,224

116,134

1,278,833

35,530

89,311

15,816

44,842

19,423
15,007

760

115,734
3,175

1,922
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4. Related Party Transactions, continued

Funding
Agency Title

Expense

Payable

Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council State of
Oregon Work
Experience

Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council WIOA National
Dislocated
Worker Grant

Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council COVID Tech
Support - Title

1B Rapid

Response

Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council Central Oregon
WorkSource

Lease MOU -

WIOA Title 1B

Klamath Community College WIOA Title 1B

Klamath Community College State of
Oregon Work
Experience

Klamath Community College Lake County
General Funds

Klamath Community College WIOA National
Dislocated
Worker Grant

Klamath Community College WIOA Rapid
Response
Additional
Assistance

Klamath Community College DHS 2019
TANF Summer
Youth
Employment
Program

Columbia Gorge Community College WIOA Title 1B

-15-

69,959

44,720

588

7,045

493,360

28,926

13,597

5,301

282,139

28,829

297,873

6,964

40,365

80,657

76

95

5,301

15,466

20,685
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4. Related Party Transactions, continued

Agency

Funding
Title

Expense

Payable

Columbia Gorge Community College

Columbia Gorge Community College

Columbia Gorge Community College

Columbia Gorge Community College

Columbia Gorge Community College

Lake County

Oregon Employment Department

Technology Association of Oregon Fndn

DHS 2019
TANF Summer
Youth
Employment
Program

State of
Oregon Work
Experience

WIOA National
Dislocated
Worker Grant

COVID Tech
Support - Title
1B Rapid
Response

Northern
Oregon
WorkSource
Lease MOU -
WIOA Title 1B

Southern
Oregon
WorkSource
Lease MOU -
WIOA Title 1B

WorkSource
Leases
WIOA Title 1B

DOL
Apprenticeship
USA

1,823

11,149

19,264

136

4,740

4,500

34,892

6,000

19,264

Additionally, EC Works paid Oregon Workforce Partnership (OWP) $10,000 during the year ended
June 30, 2020. An employee of EC Works is on the Board of Directors of OWP. The annual
membership fee covers expenses for monthly meetings, as well as the costs for partnership
development with other workforce boards in Oregon, the Oregon Employment Department, the
Higher Education Coordinating Commission, and the Governor’s office.
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5. Retirement Plan

EC Works maintains a 401(k) retirement program for eligible employees. The Organization matches
employee contributions up to 100 percent of the first 6 percent of eligible earnings contributed by
employees. All matching contributions vest immediately. The Organization’s matching contributions to
the 401(k) plan totaled $26,371 during the year ended June 30, 2020.

6. Restricted Cash
Restricted cash totaled $180,941 as of June 30, 2020.

Funds totaling $28,493 relate to amounts collected as a beneficiary of fundraising events that occurred
in September 2018 and 2019. In accordance with the fiscal service agreement, the amounts are
required to be maintained in a separate account and are restricted by the hosting entity. EC Works
received 10 percent of the net proceeds from the events to support EC Works’ administrative expenses.
Net proceeds, after administrative expenses, are to be invested in construction industry training.

EC Works received a grant from Facebook, Inc. for the benefit of the Crook County School District
STEM and CTE programs during the year ended June 30, 2020. Funds received totaling $195,302 are
restricted to reimbursement for hardware, programming, and material purchases. As of June 30, 2020,
$83,672 remains unspent and this amount is included in restricted cash.

Additionally, EC Works received a grant totaling $90,000 from Central Oregon Health Council to fund
half of the total cost of a part time Health Careers Outreach Coordinator position at Central Oregon
Community College for 36 months beginning on or around August 1, 2019. As of June 30, 2020,
$68,776 remains unspent. EC Works anticipates $48,000 will be earned in the year ended June 30,
2021 and this amount is included in current assets restricted cash and current unearned revenue. The
remaining $20,776 balance is in long-term assets restricted cash and long-term unearned revenue.

7. Liquidity and Availability of Resources

EC Works has a policy to manage its liquidity and reserves in order to meet its needs to fund operating
expenditures. At June 30, 2020, EC Works’ financial assets available for general expenditure, that is,
without donor or other restriction limiting their use, within one year from the statement of financial
position date, are comprised of the following:

Cash and restricted cash $ 578,405
Grants receivable 311,008
889,413

Less financial assets unavailable for general
expenditure within one year due to:

Restricted cash subject to specified purpose

or time restrictions (180,941)
Grants receivable subject to specified

purpose restrictions (50,000)
Financial assets available for general expenditure $ 658,472
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8. Contributed Services
EC Works received a total of $1,093 in contributed services during the year ended June 30, 2020.
These services were provided to support the Endless Summer Nights fundraising event for EC Works.
This amount has been included in in-kind revenues and in-kind expenses in the financial statements.
9. Net Asset with Donor Restrictions

As of June 30, 2020, net assets with donor restrictions consisted of the following amounts:

Facebook Grant restricted to purchase of hardware,
programming, and materials for Crook County School

District STEM and CTE Programs $ 83,672
Tykeson Family Foundation Grant restricted to supporting

the Youth Career Connect Program 50,000

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 133,672

10. Contracts Payable

Contracts payable as of June 30, 2020 totaling $42,600 includes the balance due on a contract to
purchase diversity, equity, and inclusion curriculum. Future payments are as follows:

For the Year Ending June 30,

2021 $ 14,200
2022 14,200
2023 14,200
2024 -
2025 -
Thereafter -
$ 42.600

11. Economic Uncertainties

The COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic has resulted in significant economic uncertainties across the
globe. EC Works has not yet experienced significant disruption in its operations as a result of the
ongoing COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic. However, as of the date of the independent auditor’s report,
certain economic uncertainties still exist related to the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic. These
continuing uncertainties have the potential to result in a significant impact to EC Works’ future financial
condition and operating results. However, any such future financial impact and duration of such impact
cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.
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12. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the independent auditor’s report,
the date on which the financial statements were available to be issued.

On July 28, 2020, EC Works received a $111,350 Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan from the
United States Small Business Administration (SBA) through U.S. Bank. EC Works has six months to
spend the funds on certain eligible costs, and then may apply for loan forgiveness. The loan bears a
fixed interest rate of 1 percent. As of the date of the independent auditor’s report, based on its projected
expenditures and developing SBA guidance, EC Works expects the entirety of the PPP loan proceeds
to be forgiven. Details regarding eligible costs, requirements for loan forgiveness and repayment terms
should the loan not be forgiven can be found at the following website: https://www.sba.gov/funding-
programs/loans/coronavirus-relief-options/paycheck-protection-program

Subsequent to year end, EC Works discovered disallowed costs related to the 2019 - 2020 fiscal year
during performance of annual subrecipient monitoring. As of the date of the independent auditor’s
report, EC Works is evaluating steps to take to determine the total dollar amount of disallowed costs,
but estimates the amount to be between $4,000 - $100,000. EC Works believes the full amount of
disallowed costs will be recoverable from the subrecipient, and the funds will be returned to the State
of Oregon Higher Education Coordinating Commission upon receipt.
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EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
dba EAST CASCADES WORKS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Pass-Through

Federal Entity Amounts
CFDA Identifying Paid to
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures  Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Labor
Passed through State of Oregon, Department of Community
Colleges and Workforce Development (CCWD):
Title 1B Workforce Investment Opportunity Act Cluster:
WIOA - Local Administration PY17 17.258 17-148-004 $ 1,144 $ -
WIOA - Local Administration FY18 17.258 17-148-004 2,289 -
WIOA - Local Administration PY18 17.258 18-030 14,808 475
WIOA - Local Administration FY19 17.258 18-030 77,335 77,335
WIOA - Adult PY17 17.258 17-148-004 10,297 -
WIOA - Adult FY18 17.258 17-148-004 20,602 -
WIOA - Adult FY18 10% Future Ready 17.258 18-166-001 81,791 -
WIOA - Adult FY19 17.258 18-030 443,768 341,219
WIOA - Adult FY19 10% Future Ready 17.258 18-166-001 42,000 35,530
WIOA - Adult PY19 17.258 19-079E 119,405 91,398
WIOA - Adult FY20 17.258 19-079E 229,215 176,703
WIOA - Adult PY18 Stategic Innovation 17.258 19-117C 13,992 -
WIOA - Local Administration PY18 17.259 18-030 97,640 32,131
WIOA - Youth PY18 17.259 18-030 543,733 434,664
WIOA - Youth PY19 17.259 19-079E 389,693 314,756
WIOA - Youth PY18 10% High Concentration of Eligible Youth 17.259 18-030 15,000 15,000
WIOA - Local Administration PY18 17.278 18-030 15,221 474
WIOA - Local Administration FY19 17.278 18-030 72,070 72,070
WIOA - Dislocated Worker FY19 17.278 18-030 547,853 336,629
WIOA - Dislocated Worker PY19 17.278 19-079E 143,298 90,168
WIOA - Dislocated Worker 10% Future Ready 17.278 18-166-001 5,131 -
WIOA - Dislocated Worker FY20 17.278 19-079E 280,395 174,326
WIOA - Dislocated Worker PY18 Stategic Innovation 17.278 19-117C 5,431 -
COVID-19 WIOA FY18 RR Rapid Response 25% COVID TECH 19 17.278 17-148-004 1,000 -
COVID-19 WIOA FY18 Rapid Response 25% Layoff Aversion
COVID 17.278 17-148-004 150,360 -
COVID-19 WIOA FY19 Rapid Response 25% Layoff Aversion
COVID Funds 17.278 18-030 55,400 -
WIOA FY19 DW Admin 5% IQor 17.278 18-030 5,264 -
WIOA FY19 Rapid Response 25% IQor 17.278 18-030 282,139 282,139
Total Title 1B Workforce Investment Opportunity Act Cluster 3,666,274 2,475,017
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Pass-Through

Federal Entity Amounts
CFDA Identifying Paid to
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures  Subrecipients
WIOA National Emergency Grants (NEG):
Dislocated Worker Grant Employment Recovery 17.277 20-038E 51,224 47,412
Dislocated Worker Grant Disaster Recovery 17.277 20-046E 25,954 21,874
Total WIOA National Emergency Grants (NEG) 77,178 69,286
Apprenticeship USA Grants
Apprenticeship USA - Program & Administration 17.285 18-107 202,159 44,842
Total Passed through State of Oregon, CCWD 3,945,611 2,589,145
Passed through Lane Workforce Partnership:
H-1B Job Training Grants
American Apprenticeship Initiative Grant 17.268 31131 2,369 -
Total expenditures of federal awards $ 3,947,980 $ 2,589,145
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Purpose of the Schedule

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) is a supplementary
schedule to East Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works’ (EC Works’)
financial statements and is presented for purposes of additional analysis. Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the activities of the Organization, it does not present the financial
position, changes in financial position, or the revenues and expenditures of EC Works.

Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity

The reporting entity is fully described in Note 1 to EC Works’ financial statements. The Schedule
includes all federal programs administered by EC Works for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

Basis of Presentation

The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with OMB Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 2CFR200 (Uniform
Guidance).

Federal Financial Assistance

Pursuant to the Uniform Guidance, federal financial assistance is defined as assistance provided by
a federal agency, either directly or indirectly, in the form of grants, contracts, cooperative agreements,
loans, loan guarantees, property, interest subsidies, insurance, or direct appropriations. Accordingly,
nonmonetary federal assistance, including federal surplus property, is included in federal financial
assistance and is reported on the Schedule (if applicable). Federal financial assistance does not
include direct federal cash assistance to individuals. Solicited contracts between EC Works and the
federal government for which the federal government procures tangible goods or services are not
considered to be federal financial assistance.

Major Programs

The Uniform Guidance establishes criteria to be used in defining major programs. Major programs
are those programs selected for testing using a risk-assessment model, as well as certain minimum
expenditure requirements, as outlined in the Uniform Guidance Subpart F 200.518. Programs with
similar requirements may be grouped into a cluster for testing purposes.

Basis of Accounting

Receipts and expenditures are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned or, in the case of grants where expenditures are the prime factor for
determining eligibility, when the expenditure is made. Expenditures are recorded when a liability is
incurred.

Indirect Cost Rate
EC Works elected to use the ten percent (10%) de minimis indirect cost rate of modified total direct

costs. A definition of modified total direct costs can be found in the Uniform Guidance Subpart A
200.68.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

East Cascades Workforce Investment Board
dba East Cascades Works

Bend, Oregon

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of East Cascades
Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2020, and the related statements of activities, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated February 22, 2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered East Cascades
Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works’ internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of East Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works'
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of East Cascades
Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether East Cascades Workforce Investment Board
dba East Cascades Works' financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

%h% ¢ il A O

Jones & Roth, P.C.
Eugene, Oregon
February 22, 2021
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CPAs & Business Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

East Cascades Workforce Investment Board
dba East Cascades Works

Bend, Oregon

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited East Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works' compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of East Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East
Cascades Works' major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. East Cascades Workforce
Investment Board dba East Cascades Works' major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of East Cascades Workforce
Investment Board dba East Cascades Works' major federal programs based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about East Cascades Workforce
Investment Board dba East Cascades Works' compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of East Cascades Workforce
Investment Board dba East Cascades Works' compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, East Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of East Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works is responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered East
Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works' internal control over compliance with
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of East Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works'
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

?WW ¢ il A0

Jones & Roth, P.C.
Eugene, Oregon
February 22, 2021
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EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD
dba EAST CASCADES WORKS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Summary of Auditor’s Results

1) The independent auditor’s report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of East
Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works.

2) No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the
financial statements.

3) No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements were disclosed during the audit.

4) No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the
major federal award programs.

5) The independent auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for East
Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works expresses an unmodified opinion.

6) The audit disclosed no audit findings required to be reported.

7) The programs tested as major programs were:

WIOA Cluster:
WIOA Adult Program CFDA# 17.258
WIOA Youth Activities CFDA# 17.259
WIOA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants CFDA# 17.278
Apprenticeship USA Grants CFDA #17.285

8) The threshold for distinguishing between Type A and Type B programs was $750,000.

9) East Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades Works qualifies as a low-risk
auditee.

Findings - Financial Statement Audit

None.

Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs Audit

None.

Prior Period Findings and Questioned Costs

None.
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February 22, 2021

To the Board of Directors and Management

East Cascades Workforce Investment Board
dba East Cascades Works

Bend, Oregon

We have audited the financial statements of East Cascades Workforce Investment Board dba East Cascades
Works (East Cascades Works) for the year ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated
February 22, 2021. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing
Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing
of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated September 2, 2020.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by East Cascades Works are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. As
described in Note 1, East Cascades Works adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2018-08; Not for Profit Entities (Topic 958-605) during the year
ended June 30, 2020. There were no other changes to accounting policies during the year ended June 30,
2020. We noted no transactions entered into by the Organization during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future
events.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:

o The disclosure of related party transactions in Note 4 to the financial statements.
e The disclosure of economic uncertainties due to the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic in
Note 11 to the financial statements.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than those
that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has
corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit
procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
independent auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course
of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated February 22, 2021.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of
an accounting principle to the Organization’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge,
there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Organization’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, the method of
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation
to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors of East Cascades Works and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully,

?%w v il 0.

Jones & Roth, P.C.
Eugene, Oregon
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Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

U Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.
U Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2019

Open to Public

Inspection

A For the 2019 calendar year, or tax year beginning 07/ 01/ 19 , and ending 06/ 30/ ZO

B Check if applicable:
Address change

C Name of organization

EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT

BOARD

|:| Name change

Doing business as

EAST CASCADES WORKS

D Employer identification number

47-3187533

|:| Initial return

Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address)

404 SW COLUMBI A ST, STE 200

Room/suite

E Telephone number

541-213- 0684

Final retumn/
terminated

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

BEND

OR 97702

G Gross receipts $

4, 865, 528

|:| Amended retumn

|:| Application pending

F Name and address of principal officer:

HEATHER FI CHT
404 SW COLUMBI A ST STE 200
OR 97702

BEND

| Tax-exempt status:

X so00

[ [soi0

) T (insert no.)

|_| 4947(a)(1) or

|_| 527

J_ Website: U

VWAW EASTCASCADESWORKS. ORG

H(b) Are all subordinates included?

H(c) Group exemption number Ul

H(a) Is this a group return for subordinates? |:| Yes No

|:| Yes |:| No

If "No," attach a list. (see instructions)

K Form of organization: m Corporation |_| Trust |_| Association |_| Other U

| L Year of formation: 2015

|M State of legal domicile: CR

Part | Summary
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activites:
3 . THE EAST CASCADES WCRKFORCE | NVESTMENT BOARD SUPPORTS THE TALENT NEEDS OF
8 . EMPLOYERS, AND MAXIM ZES AND ALIGNS | NVESTMENTS IN THE CAREER GOALS OF . . . .
5 JINDEVIDUALS TO FUEL A THRIVING ECONOWY.
é 2 Check this box u if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
3 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line ey 3 18
8 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1) 4 18
g 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2019 (Part V, line2a) 5 7
E 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary).... . o o 6 18
7aTotal unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 222~~~ 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 30 . /. . . i e, 7b 0
Prior_Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part VI, line 1h) 4,275,107 4,696, 264
2| 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line2g) 113, 186 137, 622
% 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4,and 7d) 472 381
® | 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11¢) 16, 946 18, 706
12 Total revenue — add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) .. ... .. ... . 4, 405, 711 4, 852, 973
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines1-3) 2,763, 723 3,077,381
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), ine4) 0
« | 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) 560, 121 663, 961
2 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11¢) 0
§ b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 250 0 .......
W 17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24¢) 1,073, 400 995, 893
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line25) 4,397, 244 4,737,235
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 122 . 8, 467 115, 738
6§ Beginning of Current Year End of Year
%t_% 20 Total assets (Part X, line1¢) 692, 652 959, 802
<] 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) 657,179 808, 591
%% 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 .. ... . ... .. ... ... .. ... ... 35, 473 151, 211
Part Il Signature Block
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.
S|gn } Signature of officer Date
Here } HEATHER FI CHT EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR
Type or print name and title
Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check |:| if | PTIN
Paid SARA HUMMEL 03/ 03/ 21 | seffemployed | P00991199
Preparer Firm's name 1 J O\|ES & RC)TH, P C Firm's EIN} 93' 0819646
Use Only PO BOX 10086
Firm's address } ELKENE, CR 97440 Phone no. 541' 687' 2320

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions)

m Yes No

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.
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Form 990 (2019) EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT  47- 3187533 Page 2
Part Ill Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line inthisPart Il ... ... .. .. .. .. . ... .. .. .. |:|

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission:

THE EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT BQOARD SUPPORTS THE TALENT NEEDS OF

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? |:| Yes No
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program

services? ves |X| No
[]

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4b (Code: ) (Expenses ¢ including grants of $ ) (Revenue ¢ )
N A

4c (Code: ) (Expenses ¢ including grants of $ ) (Revenue ¢ )
N A

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)
(Expenses  $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expenses U 4, 730, 142
DAA Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019) EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT  47- 3187533 Page 3
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule A 1 | X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)? 2 | X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to
candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part 3
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)
election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Pt 4 -~~~ 4
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197 If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part it~ 5
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If
“Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part| 6
7  Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Prtu4 7
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Partnt 8
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or
debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Parttiv.. ...~ ... 9
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments
or in quasi endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Party 10
11  If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is “Yes,” then complete Schedule D, Parts VI,
VII, VIII, IX, or X as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If "Yes,"
complete Schedule D, PartVI L 1la
b Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line' 12, that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part vV - 11b
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, PartV((t- 1lc
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part 1IX 11d | X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 11e | X
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 11f X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If “Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Parts Xl and XUl 12a| X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If
"Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XIl is optional 12b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E 13 X
1l4a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts landtv....... 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts landtv. .. 15 X
16  Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Partts itandtv. ... 16 X
17  Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part | (see instructons) 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part VIII, lines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Partu 18 | X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VI, line 9a?
If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part 1l ... 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If “Yes,” complete Schedule H 20a X
b If “Yes” to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule |, Parts land Il ... .. ... ............................ 21| X

DAA Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019) EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT  47- 3187533 Page 4
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Yes [ No

22  Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2? If “Yes,” complete Schedule |, Parts landit-~~~~~ 22 X
23 Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the
organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If "Yes," complete Schedule J 23 X

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If “Yes,” answer lines 24b

through 24d and complete Schedule K. If “No,” go to line 252 24a X
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period excepton? 24b
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c
d Did the organization act as an “on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the yearz 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part1 25a X

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior

year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ?

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part! 25b X
26  Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current

or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partii -~~~ 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key

employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee

member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these

persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partut 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with.one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part

IV instructions, for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If

"Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partlv.. 28a X

A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Parttv........................... 28b X

A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in lines 28a or 28b? If

“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partlv.. 28c | X
29  Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If “Yes,” complete Scheduem 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified

conservation contributions? If “Yes,” complete Scheduem® 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If “Yes,” complete Schedule N, Part1 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes,"

complete Schedule N, Parttit 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part 33 X
34  Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part II, Il

orlV,and PartV,line1 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(23> 35a X

b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a

controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line2 35b
36  Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable

related organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line2 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization

and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Partvi 37
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and

19? Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O. 38 | X

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V

Yes | No
la Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable 1a | 9
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable | 0
Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) WIiNNINGS t0 PriZe WINNEIS? .. ... e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1c X

DAA Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (20109) EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT  47- 3187533 Page 5
Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued)
Yes | No
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return 2a | 1
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 20 | X
Note: If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions)
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? 3a X
b If“Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No” to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedueo 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 4a X
b If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country Ul
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? 5a X
Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b X
If “Yes” to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T> 5c
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributons? 6a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductible? 6b
7  Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? 7a X
If “Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? 7b
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was
required 10 file FOrM 82822 7c X
d If “Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? 7e X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly orindirectly, on a personal benefit contract? 7f X
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? 79 X
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h X
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
9  Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b
10  Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part vil, line12 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club faciltes 10b
11  Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders 1la
b  Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due or received from them.) 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 12a
b If “Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year .. ... .. ... ... ... | 12b |
13  Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a s the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? 13a
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization is licensed to issue qualified health pans 13b
¢ Enter the amount of reservesonhand 13c
1l4a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year> 14a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation on Schedueo ... 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? 15 X
If "Yes," see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 16 X
If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O.

Form 990 (2019)

DAA
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Form 990 (2019) EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT  47- 3187533 Page 6
Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No"
response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI ... ... e |7|_
Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes [ No
la Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year 1a | 18
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain on Schedule O.
b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent | 18
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 2 X
3  Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct
supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? 3 X
4  Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 | X
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? 5 X
6  Did the organization have members or stockholders? 6 X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint
one or more members of the governing body?> 7a X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body?> 7b X
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:
a The governing body? ga | X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body?> gb | X
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organization’s mailing address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses on Schedule O ..., .. 9 X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about/policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes [ No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or-affiliates? . & - 10a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? .......................... 10b
1la Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? 11a| X
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,” go t0 line13 ... 12a| X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? | 12b X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yes,”
describe in Schedule O how this was done 12c | X
13  Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? 13| X
14  Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 | X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
The organization'’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management officad 15a | X
b Other officers or key employees of the organizaton 15b X
If “Yes” to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year? 16a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization’s_exempt status with respect to SUCh arrangemMeNS? . . . . . . ... ..ottt 16b

Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be fledu OR
18  Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)
(3)s only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
|:| Own website Another's website Upon request |:| Other (explain on Schedule O)
19  Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and
financial statements available to the public during the tax year.

20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records u
JAM E KENDELLEN 404 SW COLUMBI A ST, STE 200
BEND OR 97702 541-213- 0684

DAA Form 990 (2019)
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Page 7

Part VI Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPart VIl .. ... oo |:|
Section A.  Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

la Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the

organization's tax year.

o List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

e List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."

e List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the

organization and any related organizations.

o List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than

$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the

organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
See instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(G B) © (D) B (F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated amount
hours (do not check more than one compensation compensation of other
per week box, unless person is both an from the from related compensation
(list any officer and a director/trustee) organization organizations from the
hours for PSR EREE B (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099-MISC) organization and
related ;.% % (Ef 2 é@_’ % related organizations
orga;;lzjxons gg %. 2 § %% I}
dotted line) = ;—’ % (,%
@ HEATHER FI CHT
TR B 40. 00
EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR 0. 00 X 121,538 27,484
@ JAM E KENDELLEN
TR B 40. 00
CFO 0. 00 X 108, 647 30, 438
@ LI SA DOBEY
SRR B 5. 00
CHAIR 0.00 [X X 0 0
@ GARY NORTH
TR B 5. 00
VICE CHAIR 0.00 [X X 0 0
) HEATHER TRAMP
TNV B 5. 00
TREASURER/ SECRETARY 0.00 [X| |X 0 0
© AMY G BBS
] 2.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 | X 0 0
7 DAVI D BURGER
] 2.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 | X 0 0
© BAMBI BEVI LL
] 2.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 | X 0 0
©ROBBIE SM TH
] 2.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 | X 0 0
@ LI SA FARQUHARSON
2.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 | X 0 0
anJULI E MATTHEWS
] 2.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 | X 0 0

DAA

Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019) EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT _ 47- 3187533 Page 8
Part VII Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
@ ®) © © © ®
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated amount
hours (do not check more than one compensation compensation of other
per week bo>.<, unless per§on is both an from the from related compensation
(ist any officer and a directorfirustee) organization organizations from the
hours for os| 510 X |lexz| o (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099-MISC) organization and
related 9.% 2| g 2 é‘% % related organizations
organizations gel =% ] 5|82 @
below g2 3 2 (®s
dotted line) g = 3| 2
3 % g
(12) SAM MEI ER
RTTTUSTRRITUIPIPPPPIPIY RO 2.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 | X 0 0
(13) JENNI FER NEWWBY
RTTTUSTRRITUIPIPPPPIPIY RO 2.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 | X 0 0
(14) M CHELLE ALVARADO
SSRTTRRUITIRRRRRRT SO 2.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 | X 0 0
(15) N COLE HOUGH
SSRSTTRRRITTIRRRRRRIT SO 2.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 | X 0 0
(16) MARTIN CAVPOH- DAVI S
R USTNRRTUIPIPPPPIPIY RO 2.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 | X 0 0
(17) M KE GRAHAM
R USTNRRTUIPIPPPPIPIY RO 2.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 | X 0 0
(18) TREVOR JANECK
R USTNRRTUIPIPPPPIPIY RO 2.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 | X 0 0
(19) DR MNARTA CRONI N
R PITTRPUIURVITIVIPIPPPPIRIY RO 2.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 | X 0 0
1D SUBOTAl ... oo u 230, 185 57,922
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A ........ .. u
Total (add lines 1b and 1C) ... .. ... iiioiiiie i, u 230, 185 57, 922
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization u
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual . 3 X
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,0007? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
NOVIOURL 4 X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for_services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person . ... .iiii..iiiiiiieeiieiiiie... 5 X

Section B. Independent Contracto

I's

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of

compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

Name and

(A)
business address

B
Description of services

©
Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who
received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization U

DAA

Form 990 (2019)
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Part VIII Statement of Revenue

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI

QY

Total revenue

B)
Related or exempt
function revenue

©
Unrelated
business revenue

(D)
Revenue excluded
from tax under
sections 512-514

la Federated campaigns la

Membership dues 1b

Fundraising events 1c

s |ad

Government grants (contributions) le

4, 346, 264

- ® O O T
py)
o
2
@
(o
o
ot
«Q
[<Y)
=
N
2
o
>
(7]

All other contributions, gifts, grants,
and similar amounts not included above ........ 1f

350, 000

g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f 1g [$

Contributions, Gifts, Grants
and Other Similar Amounts

h Total. Add linesla—1f. .. ... ......................

4, 696, 264

2a  PROGRAM | NOOVE

evenue

Business Code

137, 622

137, 622

Progkram Service
e - ® O O T

137, 622

¢ Gain or (loss) 7c

381

381

(i) Real (i) Personal

Gross rents 6a

Less: rental expenses | 6b

Rental inc. or (loss) 6C

Net rental income or (I0SS) . ... .. .. ... ... il

Gross amount from

(i) Securities (ii) Other

sales of assets
other than inventory | 7@

Less: cost or other

basis and sales exps. [ 7b

Net gain or (loss) .....

Other Revenue

8a Gross income from fundraising events
(not including ¢
of contributions reported on line 1c).
See Part IV, line 18 8a

b Less: direct expenses 8b

¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraising events .. ..

16, 379

9a Gross income from gaming activities.
See Part IV, line 19 9a

b Less: direct expenses 9b

¢ Net income or (loss) from gaming activities . ... ..

10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances 10a

b Less: cost of goods sold 10b

1la = M SCELLANEQUS REVENUE

Miscellaneous
Revenue

O Q o T
)_>.
o
=
>
[©]
=
-
@
<
[¢]
>
c
[¢]

Business Code

2,327

2,327

2,327

12 Total revenue. See instructions ................

4, 852,973

139, 949

381

DAA

Form 990 (2019)
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Part IX

Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total (eﬁznenses Progralgr?)service Managesgent and Fund(Ea)ising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expenses
1  Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line21 3, 077, 381 3, 077, 381
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line 22
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15and 16
4 Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees 295, 490 148, 289 147, 201
6 Compensation not included above to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)
7 Other salaries and wages 262, 050 242,812 19, 238
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 15, 725 15, 494 231
9 Other employee benefts 48, 494 45, 934 2, 560
10 Payroll taxes 42, 202 30, 716 11, 486
11 Fees for services (nonemployees):
a Management
b Legad 67 67
¢ Accounting 18,025 18, 025
d Lobbying
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment management fees
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, fist line 11g expenses on Schedule 0.)
12 Advertising and promotion
13 Office expenses 5, 877 4,384 1,493
14 Information technology
15 Royaltes
16 Occupancy 49, 782 37,124 12, 658
7 Tavel 14, 043 10, 473 3,570
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 3,918 2,922 996
20 Interest
21 Payments to affliates
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization
23 Insurance 4,411 4,411
24 Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered
above (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.)
a APPRENTICESH P USA 181, 601 181, 601
b CROK CONTY STEM 111, 630 111, 630
¢ . OTHER PROGRAMG PRQIECTS o 99, 757 99, 757
d . WARM SPRINGS FUTURE READY 87, 006 87, 006
e Al other expenses 419, 776 407, 828 11, 948
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e . . .. 4, 737, 235 4, 503, 351 233, 884 0
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the
organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation. Check here u |:| if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) ...............
DAA Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019) EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT 47-3187533 page 11
Part X Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X D_
A (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interest-bearing 467,570]| 1 578, 405
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 2
3 Pledges and grants receivable, n et 118, 025] s 311, 008
4 Accounts receivable, net 871| 4
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined
%) under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)B) 6
aé 7 Notes and loans receivable, n et 7
<| 8 Inventories forsaleoruse 8
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 14,893]| o 10,519
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of SchedueD 10a
b Less: accumulated depreciaton 10b 10c
11 Investments—publicly traded securites 11
12 Investments—other securities. See Part IV, line1z 12
13 Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line1z. ... 13
14 Intangible assets 14
15 Other assets. See Part Iv, ine1z. 91, 293] 15 59, 870
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33) .............................. 692, 652 16 959, 802
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 466, 653 17 523, 885
18 Grants payable 18
19 Deferred revenue Lm0 99, 287 19 226, 143
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilites L & 0 w0 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
? 22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
p= trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
E controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 22
—' |23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third paries 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third partes 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D 91, 239| 25 58, 563
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 ... oooviieee e 657,179] 26 808, 591
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here u
§ and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
& |27 Net assets without donor restricions 35, 473] 27 133,672
@ |28 Net assets with donor restrictons 28 17,539
e Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here u D
I and complete lines 29 through 33.
E 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 29
§ 30 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment und 30
£ |31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 31
g 32 Total net assets or fund balances 35,473]| 32 151, 211
33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances .............. .. ... .. .. . . i 692, 652 33 959, 802

DAA

Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019) EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT 47- 3187533 Page 12
Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets

[l
4,852,973

1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIIl, column (A), ine12) 1
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), ine25) 2 4, 737, 235
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from lipez 3 115, 738
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, coumn (A 4 35,473
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 5
6 Donated services and use of facilites 6
7 Investment expenses 7
8 Prior period adjustments 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedueo) 9
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line
e 10 N (=) ) I T 10 151, 211
Part XIl Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XU . |:|
Yes | No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: |:| Cash Accrual |:| Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain in
Schedule O.
2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a X

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
|:| Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis

b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 20 | X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis

c If “Yes” to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of

the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c | X
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on
Schedule O.
3a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133? 3a| X

b If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the
reguired audit or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits

........................... 3b| X
Form 990 (2019)
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Form 990 (2019) EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT _ 47- 3187533 Page 8
Part VII Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
@ ®) © © © ®
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated amount
hours (do not check more than one compensation compensation of other
per week bo>.<, unless per§on is both an from the from related compensation
(ist any officer and a directorfirustee) organization organizations from the
hours for os| 510 sz T (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099-MISC) organization and
related 9.% 2| g 2 ‘9‘% 3 related organizations
organizations g% %- Tlg (g2 2
below 8 i—’ 3 2 (®s
dotted line) § = 3 ?g
& g 2
® g
(20) JON | RVI NE
RTTTUSTRRITUIPIPPPPIPIY RO 2.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 | X 0 0
1b  Subtotal ... ... u
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A ........ .. u
Total (add lines 1b and 1C) ... .. ... iiioiiiie i, u
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization u
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual . 3
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,0007? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
NOIVITUBL 4
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for_services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person . ... .iiii..iiiiiiieeiieiiiie... 5
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.
A B C
Name and b(us)lness address Descriptio(n )of services Comp(en)sation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who
received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization U

DAA
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SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support OME No. 1545.0047
Form 990 or 990-EZ
( ) Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. 20 19
Department of the Treasury u Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service . . . . . .

u Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization EAST CASCADES V‘D?KFCRCE | I\NESTNENT Employer identification number

BOARD 47- 3187533
Part | Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

2 A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).)

3 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

4 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's name,

city, and state:
An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II.)

A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public

described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)

A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)

An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

university:
An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross

receipts from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its

support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses

acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Ill.)

11 H An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for.the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes

of one or more publicly supported organizations described in.section 509(a)(1)-or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3).

Check the box in lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

I Y < I A I O I O

10

Q@

|:| Type |. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b |:| Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c Type Il functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d |:| Type Il non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e |:| Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type Il, Type IlI
functionally integrated, or Type Il non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

f  Enter the number of supported organizations I:I

g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

(i) Name of supported (i) EIN (iii) Type of organization (iv) Is the organization (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of
organization (described on lines 1-10 listed in your governing support (see other support (see
above (see instructions)) document? instructions) instructions)
Yes No
)
(B)
©
(D)
E)
Total
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT 47-3187533 Page 2
Part Il Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under
Part lll. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Ill.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)  u (@) 2015 (b) 2016 (c) 2017 (d) 2018 (e) 2019 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.") 3,187, 034 3, 699, 627 3,499, 647 4,295, 110 4, 696, 264 19, 377, 682
2 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf
3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge
4  Total. Add lines 1 through3 3,187,034 3, 699, 627 3,499, 647 4,295,110 4, 696, 264 19, 377,682
5  The portion of total contributions by
each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column ()
6 Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4 .. 19, 377, 682
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)  u (@) 2015 (b) 2016 (c) 2017 (d) 2018 (e) 2019 (f) Total
7  Amounts from line4 3,187,034 3,699, 627 3,499, 647 4,295,110 4, 696, 264 19, 377,682
8  Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similar sources ... ... 472 381 853
9  Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularly carried on ........ .. ...,
10  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part VL) .....................
11  Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 19, 378, 535
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructons) | 12 508, 547
13  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this DoX and S0P Nere . . il » |7|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2019 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, columin @) 14 %
15  Public support percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part Il, line24 15 %
16a 33 1/3% support test—2019. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton | 2 |:|
b 33 1/3% support test—2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check
this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton | 2 |:|
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2019. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances"” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part VI how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization | 2 |:|
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here.
Explain in Part VI how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly
supported organizaton | 2 |:|
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see

instructions

............................................................................................................................................ > []

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT 47-3187533 Page 3

Part 1lI Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II.
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Il.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) u (@) 2015 (b) 2016 (c) 2017 (d) 2018 (e) 2019 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees
received. (Do not include any "unusual grants.")
2 Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is related to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose .. ........
3 Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelated trade or business under section 513
4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf
5  The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge
6 Total. Add lines 1 through5
7a  Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualified persons
b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year
¢ Addlines7aand7b
8  Public support. (Subtract line 7c from
line6)
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)  u (a) 2015 (b).2016 (c) 2017 (d) 2018 (e) 2019 (f) Total
9 Amounts from line¢
10a Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from similar sources ...
b Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975
c Addlines 10aand 10b
11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b, whether
or not the business is regularly carried on . ...
12 Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Partvty
13  Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11,
and12)
14  First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this DoX and StOp Nere > |:|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15  Public support percentage for 2019 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, courn () 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part 11, INe 15 . ittt ettt 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2019 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, couron ¢ 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part Ill, line27 18 %
19a 33 1/3% support tests—2019. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line
17 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ..................... | 4 |:|
b 33 1/3% support tests—2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization................. | 4 |:|
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ......................... | 4 |:|

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT 47-3187533 Page 4
Part IV Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part I, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked 12b of Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part I, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing
documents? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported

organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2
3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer
(b) and (c) below. 3a

b  Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the

organization made the determination. 3b
¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c
4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization")? If
"Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part |, answer (b) and (c) below. 4da

b  Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? If "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes. 4c

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If "Yes,"
answer (b) and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 5a
b  Type I or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already

designated in the organization's organizing document? 5b
¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 5c

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 6

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity

with regard to a substantial contributor? If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 7
8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7?
If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 8

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described

in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9a
b  Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which

the supporting organization had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9b
¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9c

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type |l supporting organizations, and all Type Ill non-functionally integrated

supporting organizations)? If "Yes," answer 10b below. 10a
b  Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT 47-3187533 Page 5
Part IV Supporting Organizations (continued)

Yes No
11  Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c)
below, the governing body of a supported organization? lla
b A family member of a person described in (a) above? 11b
c A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? If "Yes" to a, b, or ¢, provide detail in Part VI. 1lic
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations
Yes No
1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees at all times during the
tax year? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported
organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1
2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If "Yes," explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization. 2
Section C. Type |l Supporting Organizations
Yes No
1 Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? If "No," describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organization(s). 1
Section D. All Type Ill Supporting Organizations
Yes No
1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing-the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1
2 Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If "No," explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2
3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization’s supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role the organization's
supported organizations played in this regard. 3
Section E. Type lll Functionally-Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
a The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
b The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
c The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions).
2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below. Yes No

a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If "Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a

b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization’s involvement, one or more

of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If "Yes," explain in Part VI the
reasons for the organization’s position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these
activities but for the organization’s involvement. 2b
3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each

of its supported organizations? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b
DAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT 47-3187533 Page 6
Part V Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations
1 |:|Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See
instructions. All other Type lll non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year ®) Cur.rent vear
(optional)
1 Net short-term capital gain 1
2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 2
3 Other gross income (see instructions) 3
4 Add lines 1 through 3. 4
5 Depreciation and depletion 5
6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions) 6
7 Other expenses (see instructions) 7
8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 8
Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year ®) Cur.rent vear
(optional)
1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):
a Average monthly value of securities la
b Average monthly cash balances 1b
¢ Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c
d Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c) 1d
e Discount claimed for blockage or other
factors (explain in detail in Part VI):
2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 2
3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d. 3
4  Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions). 4
5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3) 5
6 Multiply line 5 by .035. 6
7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7
8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) 8
Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year
1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A) 1
2 Enter 85% of line 1. 2
3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A) 3
4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 4
5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5
6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6
7 |:|Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type |ll supporting organization (see

instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT 47-3187533 Page 7
Part V Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)
Section D - Distributions Current Year
1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes
2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported

organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets
Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required)
Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.
Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.
Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part VI). See instructions.
9  Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C, line 6
10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

(o2l BN [o2 1 (42 1 B [OV]

@) (i) (ii)
Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions Underdistributions Distributable
Pre-2019 Amount for 2019

1 Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C, line 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2019
(reasonable cause required-explain in Part VI). See
instructions.

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2019
From 2014
From 2015 . ... ...l
From 2016 ... ... .
From 2017
From 2018 .. ... ...

Total of lines 3a through e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2019 distributable amount

i Carryover from 2014 not applied (see instructions)
j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 3f.

4  Distributions for 2019 from

Section D, line 7: $
a Applied to underdistributions of prior years
b Applied to 2019 distributable amount
¢ _Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2019, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6  Remaining underdistributions for 2019. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

7  Excess distributions carryover to 2020. Add lines 3]
and 4c.

=l (ol (O [o N [T fo i o]

8  Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2015

Excess from 2016 ............. ...

Excess from 2017

Excess from 2018

o (o |o |o|o

Excess from 2019

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT 47-3187533 Page 8
Part VI Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10; Part Il, line 17a or 17b; Part
Ill, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)

DAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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Schedule B . OMB No. 1545-0047
(Form 990, 990-£7, Schedule of Contributors
or 990-PF) u Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF. 2019
Department of the Treasury . . .
Internal Revenue Service u Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EAST CASCADES WORKFCORCE | NVESTMENT
BOARD 47-3187533

Organization type (check one):

Filers of: Section:

X

Form 990 or 990-EZ 501(c)( 3 ) (enter number) organization

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
527 political organization

Form 990-PF 501(c)(3) exempt private foundation

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

N I O B A O

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See
instructions.

General Rule

|:| For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000
or more (in money or property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts | and Il. See instructions for determining a
contributor's total contributions.

Special Rules

For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33'/3% support test of the
regulations under sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ), Part Il, line
13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1)
$5,000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VIII, line 1h; or (ii) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts | and II.

|:| For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific,
literary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts | (entering
"N/A" in column (b) instead of the contributor name and address), Il, and Ill.

|:| For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such
contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received
during the year for an exclusively religious, charitable, etc., purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the
General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions
totaling $5,000 or more during the year |

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990,
990-EZ, or 990-PF), but it must answer “No” on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its
Form 990-PF, Part |, line 2, to certify that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019)

DAA
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019)

PAGE 1 OF 1 Page 2

Name of organization

Employer identification number

EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTIVENT 47-3187533
Part | Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.
(a) (b) (© (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
STATE OF OREGON COVWMUNI TY COLLEGES
1.1 AND WORKFORCE  DEVELOPMENT Person
255 CAPI TOL ST. NE Payroll |
.................................................................................... 4,311,290 | nNoncash | |
SALEM ...................................... m . 97201 .......... (Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (© (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
2. | . FACEBOOK, INC. .. ... Person
1601 WLLOW RD Payroll .
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 250,000 | nNoncash [ |
MENLO PARK CA 94025 (Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (© (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
3.1 . TYKESON FAM LY CHARI TABLE TRUST Person
1144 WLLAG LLESPI E RD STE 33 Payroll |
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 100,000 | nNoncash | |
ELK-.':ENE .................................... m . 97401 .......... (Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (© (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
................................................................................... Person
Payroll
........................................................................................................ Noncash
............................................................................ (Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
@) (b) (©) C)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
................................................................................... Person
Payroll
........................................................................................................ Noncash
............................................................................ (Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
@) (b) (©) C)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
................................................................................... Person
Payroll
........................................................................................................ Noncash
............................................................................ (Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

DAA
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements
(Form 990) u Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990,

Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2019

Department of the Treasury u Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service U Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT

BOARD 47- 3187533

Part | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.
(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

1 Total number at end of year

2 Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)

3 Aggregate value of grants from (during year)

4 Aggregate value at end ofyear

5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control?

6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used
only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring impermissible Private DENEfit 2 o et eeieiieiiiiiiiiiiiis D Yes D No
Part Il Conservation Easements.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) Preservation of a historically important land area
Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a certified historic structure
Preservation of open space
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation
easement on the last day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
a Total number of conservation easements . L0 2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements =~~~ oo 0w 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic’structure included in@ -~ 2c
d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a
historic structure listed in the National Register 2d
3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the
tax yearu
4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located U
5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it hods? |:| Yes |:| No
6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
u_
7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
us
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)
and section 170 @) BYI? .. o o []ves []nNo
9 In Part XIllI, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the
organization's accounting for conservation easements.
Part Il Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

la If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public

a
b

service, provide in Part XlIl the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,

provide the following amounts relating to these items:
(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1
(i) Assets included in Form 990, Part X

cc

If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the

following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:
Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1

Assets included in FOrm 990, Part X . ... ... e iiii.ais

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

DAA

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2019

EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE

| N\VESTMENT  47-3187533

Page 2

Part Il

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its

collection items (check all that apply):

a Public exhibition d Loan or exchange program
b Scholarly research e oter
c Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part
XIil.
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? .. ............................... |:| Yes |:| No
Part IV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form
990, Part X, line 21.
la Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not
included on Form 990, Part X? |:| Yes |:| No
b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XlIl and complete the following table:
Amount
c Beginning balance 1c
d Additions during the year 1d
e Distributions during the year le
B ENdING DalanCe 1f
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? |:| Yes [ | No
b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XllIl. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XUl ... . ... ... .. ......................
Part V Endowment Funds.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back (e) Four years back
la Beginning of year balance

b Contributions
¢ Net investment earnings, gains, and

¢ Term endowment U

3a

losses

Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
Board designated or quasi-endowment u
Permanent endowment u %

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.
Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

organization by: Yes | No
() Unrelated organizations 3a(i)
(i) Related organizations 3a(ii)
b If “Yes” on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on ScheduleR? = 3b
4 Describe in Part XIll the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.
Part VI Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part 1V, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Description of property (a) Cost or other basis (b) Cost or other basis (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
(investment) (other) depreciation
la Land
b Buidings
c Leasehold improvements
d Equipment
e Other ... ... . ...

DAA

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT _ 47- 3187533 Page 3
Part VIl  Investments — Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:

(including name of security) Cost or end-of-year market value

Part VIl Investments — Program Related.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:

Cost or end-of-year market value

@
&)
(©)
4
©)
(6)
@)
®)
©
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) u
Part IX Other Assets.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description (b) Book value

@ OPERATI NG LEASE ASSET 56, 670
@ DEPOSI TS 3, 200
(©)
4
©)
(6)
@)
®)
©
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) ine 15.) . u 59, 870

Part X Other Liabilities.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,

line 25.

1 (a) Description of liability (b) Book value

(1) Federal income taxes
(2) OPERATING LEASE LIABILITY 58, 563
®3)
4)
(5)
(6)
)
(8)
©)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 25.) u 58, 563
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XllI, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XllI

DAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2019
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2010 EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT  47-3187533 Page 4
Part XI Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial stataments 1 4, 854, 066
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 2a

b Donated services and use of facilites 2b 1,093

c Recoveries of prior year grants 2c

d Other (Describe in Part Xy 2d

e Add lines 2athrough 2d =~ 2e l, 093
3 Subtract line 2e from lined 3 4, 852, 973
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line7b 4a

b Other (Describe in Partxuty 4b

C Addlinesd4aand4b 4c

5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part |, line 12.) ... .. ... .. .. . ... ... ........... 5 4, 852, 973
Part Xl Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1 4, 738, 328
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilites 2a l, 093

b Prior year adjustments 2b

c Otherlosses 2c

d Other (Describe in Part XIIL.) 2d

€ Add lines 2a througn 2d | 2e l, 093
3 Subtract line 2e from Ne L 3 4,737,235
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line 7b . /. 4a

b Other (Describe in Partxut.y w0 4b

c Addlines4aand4b e Lm0 4c

5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part |, line 18.) ... .. ... ... .. . ... ... ........... 5 4, 737, 235
Part Xlll Supplemental Information.

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part Ill, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line

2; Part X, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XlI, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

DAA

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT  47- 3187533 Page 5
Part XIll Supplemental Information (continued)

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019

DAA
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SCHEDULE G Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities OMB No. 1545-0047
(Form 990 or 990-E2) CompIete G anization antered more than $15,000 on Form S00.EZ. fine 68 - 2019
Department of the Treasury U Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service U Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization EAST CA.SC:A[ES V‘O:QKFCRCE | I\NESTNENT Employer identification number
BOARD 47-3187533
Part | Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 17.

Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part.
1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check all that apply.

a |:| Mail solicitations e |:| Solicitation of non-government grants
b |:| Internet and email solicitations f |:| Solicitation of government grants
c |:| Phone solicitations g |:| Special fundraising events

d |:| In-person solicitations

2a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees,
or key employees listed in Form 990, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? |:| Yes |:| No

b If “Yes,” list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.

(iii)_ Didhfund- (v) Amount paid to (vi) Amount paid to
(i) Name and address of individual . . Igljss?édyaz? (iv) Gross receipts (or retained by) (or retained by)
or entity (fundraiser) (i) Activity control of from activity fundraiser listed in organization
contributions? col. (i)
Yes | No
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
TOtAl L |

3 List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been natified it is exempt from
registration or licensing.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
DAA



03660

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019

EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE

| N\VESTMENT  47-3187533 Page 2

Part Il Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported more
than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List events with
gross receipts

reater than $5,000.

(a) Event #1

ENDLESS SUMMVER

(b) Event #2

(c) Other events

NONE

(d) Total events
(add col. (a) through

(event type) (event type) (total number) col. (c))
2
[]
& | 1 Gross receipts 28, 934 28, 934
Bt PSS rEeEps
2 Less: Contributions
3 Gross income (line 1 minus
ne2) ... 28, 934 28,934
4 Cash prizes
5 Noncash prizes
§ 6 Rentfacility costs 1, 255 1, 255
c
[0}
o
& | 7 Food and beverages 4,095 4,095
5]
(0]
& | 8 Entertainment 3, 550 3, 550
9 Other direct expenses 3, 655 3, 655
10 Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9 in coumn (@) ~ /.~ 4 12, 555
11 Net income summary. Subtract line 10 from line 3, column (A) . . 0 i e > 16, 379

Part Ill Gaming. Complete if the organization-answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported more than
$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

(b) Pull tabs/instant

(d) Total gaming (add

© ) )
g (@ Bingo bingo/progressive bingo (c) Other gaming col. (a) through col. (c))
g
O]
x

1 Gross revenue.........
o 2 Cash prizes
[%2]
c
a') .
u% 3 Noncash prizes
B
% 4 Rentfacility costs

5 Other direct expenses

| {Yes ... % | {Yes . ... % | [Yes ... %

6 Volunteer labor No No No

7 Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5 in couvln@ ..~~~ 4

8 Net gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from line 1, column (d) >

DAA

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT  47- 3187533 Page 3

11  Does the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmembers? |:| Yes |:| No
12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust, or a member of a partnership or other entity
formed to administer charitable GamiNg? ... ... ... . . . |:| Yes |:| No
13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:
a The organization's facility 13a %
b Anoutside facility 13b %
14  Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization’s gaming/special events books and
records:
Nameu
Address U
15a Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming
revenue? |:| Yes |:| No
b If “Yes,” enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organizatonru $ and the
amount of gaming revenue retained by the third patyu ¢
c If “Yes,” enter name and address of the third party:
Nameu
Address U
16 Gaming manager information:
Nameu
Gaming manager compensatonu $
Description of services providedu
|:| Director/officer |:| Employee |:| Independent contractor
17  Mandatory distributions:
a Is the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to
retain the state gaming license? |:| Yes |:| No
b Enter the amount of distributions required under state law to be distributed to other exempt organizations or

spent in the organization’s own exempt activities during the tax year u  $

Part IV Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 2b, columns (i) and (v); and

Part 1ll, lines 9, 9b, 10b, 15b, 15c, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional information.
See _instructions.

DAA
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, OMB No. 1545-0047
(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2019
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 21 or 22.
u Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Department of the Treasury U Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization EAST C:A.SC:A[ES V‘ﬂ?KFCRCE | N\/ESTNENT Employer identification number
BOARD 47-3187533
Part | General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants OF @SSIStANCE? ... .. ... . . ... Yes |:| No
2 Describe in Part IV the organization’s procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.
Part Il Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990,
Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.
1 (@) Name and address of organization (b) EIN () IRC (d) Amount of cash (e) Amount of non- f) Method of valuation | (g) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
or government (it ZS,CJHEQME) grant cash assistance book, Fmérf ppraisa, noncash assistance or assistance

(1) CENTRAL OREGON | NTERGOVERNMENTAL OO

334 NE HAWTHORNE AVE SUBRECI PI ENT
BEND OR 97701 93- 0620261 | &V 1, 635, 580
(2) KLAVATH COMWMUNI TY COLLEGE

7390 S 6TH STREET SUBRECH PI ENT
KLAVATH FALLS OR 97603 93-1211933 | GOV 852, 072
(3) COLUMBI A GORCGE COVWUNI TY COLLEGE

400 EAST SCENNC DRIVE SUBRECH PI ENT
THE DALLES OR 97058 93- 0700843 [ GOV 330, 109
(4) OREGON NMANUFACTURI NG EXTENSI ON PART

7650 SW BEVELAND STREE, SUITE 750 SUBRECI PI ENT
PCORTLAND OR 97223 93-1315027 | 501C3 32,829

PROGRAM ACTI VI TI ES

226, 791

©®)

@

®

©

2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed in the line 1 table u 4

3 Enter total number of other organizations listed in the line 1 table u 0

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2019)
DAA
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Schedule | (Form 990) (2019) EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT 47-3187533

Page 2

Part I

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Individuals. Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 22.
Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

(a) Type of grant or assistance (b) Number of (c) Amount of (d) Amount of (e) Method of valuation (book, | (f) Description of noncash assistance

recipients cash grant noncash assistance FMV, appraisal, other)

6

7

Part IV

Supplemental Information. Provide the information required in-Patrt |, line 2;-Part-lil;"column (b); and any other additional information.

PART I, LINE 2 - PROCEDURES FOR MONI TORING THE USE OF GRANT FUNDS

THE FUNDS GRANTED. EC WORKS STAFF PREPARE CLOSEQUT REPORTS NOTI NG ANY

DAA

Schedule | (Form 990) (2019)
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SCHEDULE L
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Department of the Treasury

Transactions With Interested Persons

U Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part 1V, line 25a, 25b, 26, 27, 28a,
28b, or 28c, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or 40b.

U Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2019

Open To Public

Internal Revenue Service U Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTMENT Employer identification number
BOARD 47-3187533
Part | Excess Benefit Transactions (section 501(c)(3), section 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations only).
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part 1V, line 25a or 25b, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 40b.
(b) Relationship between disqualified person and (d) Corrected?
1 (a) Name of disqualified person (c) Description of transaction
organization Yes No
]
@
@)
@
©)
(6)

2 Enter the amount of tax incurred by the organization managers or disqualified persons during the year

under section 4958

3 Enter the amount of tax, if any, on line 2, above, reimbursed by the organization

Part Il

Loans to and/or From Interested Persons.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or Form 990, Part IV, line 26; or if the
organization reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 5, 6, or 22.

(a) Name of interested person

(b) Relationship
with organization

(c) Purpose of
loan

(d) Loan
to or from
the org.?

(e) Original
principal amount

To

From

(f) Balance due

(g) In default?

(h) Approved
by board or
committee?

(i) Written
agreement?

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

(10

Total

Part Il

Grants or Assistance Benefiting Interested Persons.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part 1V, line 27.

(a) Name of interested person

(b) Relationship between interested
person and the organization

(c) Amount of assistance|

(d) Type of assistance

(e) Purpose of assistance
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For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.
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Part IV Business Transactions Involving Interested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 28a, 28b, or 28c.

(2) Name of interested person (b) Relationship between (c) Amount of (d) Description of transaction (e)ofS ggmg

interested person and the transaction revenues?
organization ves | No

1) COLUMBI A GORGE COVMUNI TY COLLEGE | BOARD MEMBER 330, 109| SUBRECI Pl ENT X

Part V Supplemental Information.
Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see instructions).

Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ OMB No. 1575-0017
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2019
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Department of the Treasury u Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service u Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organizaton EAST CASCADES WORKFORCE | NVESTVENT Employer identification number
BOARD 47- 3187533

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 4 — SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO ORGAN ZATI ONAL DOCUMENTS
FORM 990, PART M, LINE 11B - ORGANIZATION S PROCESS TO REVIEW FORM 990
FORM 990, PART M, LINE 12C - ENFCRCEMENT OF CONFLICTS PQLICY .
FORM 990, PART M, LINE 15A - COVPENSATI ON PROCESS FOR TOP OFFIQAL

CFORM 990, PART VI, LINE 19 - GOVERNI NG DOCUMENTS DI SCLOSURE EXPLANATI ON

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019)
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Name of the organization

EAST CASCADES WORKFCORCE | NVESTMENT

Employer identification number

47-3187533

PAGE 1 OF 1
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03660 East Cascades Workforce Investment
47-3187533 Federal Statements
FYE: 6/30/2020

Taxable Interest on_Investments

Description
Unrelated Exclusion Postal Acquired after usS
Amount Business Code Code 6/30/75 Obs ($ or %)
$ 381 14
TOTAL $ 381




03660 East Cascades Workforce Investment

47-3187533
FYE: 6/30/2020

Federal Statements

Description

Form 990, Part IX, Line 24e - All Other Expenses

Total
Expenses

I NCUMBENT WORKER

YOUTH CAREER CONNECT

I NDUSTRY COHORT TRAI NI NG
WORKSOURCE COREGON CENTER
SECTORS PROIECTS

DI VERSI TY AND | NCLUSI ON
| TRAC DATABASE
VEMBERSHI PS

STAFF TRAI NI NG

FEES AND TAXES

PROGRAM OUTREACH

TOTAL

$ 74, 330
71, 000
68, 000
52,492
49, 403
47, 300
30, 217
12,377

7,278
6, 950
429

$ 419, 776

Program
Service

$ 74, 330
71, 000

68, 000

52,492

49, 403

47, 300

30, 217

9, 230

5, 427

429

$ 407, 828

Management & Fund
General Raising

$ $

3, 147
1,851
6, 950

$ 11, 948 $
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47-3187533 Federal Statements
FYE: 6/30/2020

Endless Summer Nights
Other Direct Fundraising or Gaming Expenses

Description Amount
OTHER $ 3, 655
TOTAL $ 3, 655
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REOPENING PLAN — Scenario Il, By Appointment Only
WorkSource East Cascades — March 2021
The Dalles, Redmond, Bend, Klamath Falls

The WorkSource East Cascades Local Leadership Teams have developed a plan to safely open certain portions
of the region’s four comprehensive WorkSource centers to accommodate scenario Il, by appointment only
services, in a safe and equitable way.

This plan was developed with fluidity, flexibility, and continuous improvement at the forefront of the decision-
making process. The Leadership Team has committed to regular monitoring of the plan to ensure any changes
in guidance or evolving needs of the community are reflected and communicated at all layers of the local and
state-level system.

WorkSource East Cascades Local Leadership Teams

North:

Andrea Rogers, Vocational Rehabilitation, andrea.j.rogers@dhsoha.state.or.us

Brenda Stewart, East Cascades Works, brenda@ecworks.org

Kendall Lenhares, Oregon Manufacturing Extension Partnership, klenhares@gmail.com
Mark Adams, Oregon Employment Department, mark.t.adams@oregon.gov

Melissa Barrett, East Cascades Works, melissa@ecworks.org

Morgan Rincon, Oregon Commission for the Blind, moregan.rincon@state.or.us

Neil Friedrich, Oregon Department of Human Services, neil.friedrich@dhsoha.state.or.us
Teresa Cummings-Weir, Columbia Gorge Community College, tcummings@cgcc.edu
Stefanie Siebold, East Cascades Works, stefanie@ecworks.org

Central:

Amy Gibbs, Oregon Employment Department, amy.l.gibbs@oregon.gov

Bambi Bevill, Vocational Rehabilitation, Bambi.a.bevill@dhsoha.state.or.us

Brenda Stewart, East Cascades Works, brenda@ecworks.org

Cortney Gibson, Vocational Rehabilitation, cortney.gibson@dhsoha.state.or.us

Dana Dunlap, Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council, ddunlap@coic.org

Desiree Berry, Vocational Rehabilitation, desiree.berry@dhsoha.state.or.us

Jennifer Newby, Central Oregon Community College, jnewby@cocc.edu

Josh Lagalo, Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council, jlagalo@coic.org

Kendall Lenhares, Oregon Manufacturing Extension Partnership, klenhares@gmail.com
Melinda Proffitt, Oregon Department of Human Services, Melinda.r.proffitt@dhsoha.state.or.us
Melissa Barrett, East Cascades Works, melissa@ecworks.org

Molly James, Oregon Commission for the Blind, molly.james@state.or.us

Rena Gibney, Department of Human Services, rena.l.gibney@dhsoha.state.or.us

Sarah Klaja, Oregon Commission for the Blind, sarah.klaja@state.or.us

Soledad Haines, Oregon Employment Department, soledad.v.haines@oregon.gov
Stefanie Siebold, East Cascades Works, stefanie@ecworks.org
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South:

Brenda Stewart, East Cascades Works, brenda@ecworks.org

Greg Chandler, Department of Human Services, greg.chandler@dhsoha.state.or.us
Jane Hagle, Oregon Commission for the Blind, jane.hagle@state.or.us

Kari Kingsolver, Vocational Rehabilitation, kari.kingsolver@dhsoha.state.or.us

Kendall Lenhares, Oregon Manufacturing Extension Partnership, klenhares@gmail.com
Maurita Johnson, Department of Human Services, Maurita.johnson@dhslha.stat.or.us
Melissa Barrett, East Cascades Works, melissa@ecworks.org

Michael Cargill, Klamath Community College, cargill@klamathcc.edu

Perry Andrews, Oregon Department of Human Services, perry.j.andrews@dhsoha.state.or.us
Randy Norris, Oregon Employment Department, randal.l.norris@oregon.gov

Stefanie Siebold, East Cascades Works, stefanie@ecworks.org
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Guidance

The WorkSource East Cascades Leadership Team used guidance from federal, state, and local authorities such
as the Oregon Health Authority and the Centers for Disease Control to develop this plan. Additionally, the state
and local area “We’re Listening” Staff Feedback Survey results, the Workforce System Executive Leadership
Team (WSET) memos and guidance, and the One-Stop-Operator Continuous Improvement Team (OSOCIT)
research were referenced in the development of this plan.

Reopening Scenarios

The WorkSource East Cascades Reopening Plan addresses scenario Il only. This plan allows for WorkSource
Center services to continue to be delivered virtually or by telephone, with limited in-person services available
by appointment for those with barriers to technology or telephone. Scenario Il will be limited to a designated
area in each of the four comprehensive WorkSource East Cascades centers. The Local Leadership Team has
identified specific areas for appointments that are isolated from staff workspaces or has identified areas that
are in closest proximity to entrance and exit points to limit staff exposure.

Considerations
The WorkSource East Cascades Leadership Team utilized all available templates and tools to develop plans and
ensure all possible considerations were discussed and addressed in this final draft.

Key Considerations:
e Safety — ensures all staff and customers engaging with WorkSource East Cascades center staff are
provided the safest possible environment.
e Operations — ensures that all operational topics are viewed through the scenario Il lens and take all co-
located partners into consideration.
e Service Delivery — ensures all residents of the ten counties east of the Cascade Mountain Range have
equitable access to services, and that staff are well equipped to perform the work.

Subcategories:
e Communication
e Training
e Monitoring & Continuous Improvement

The subcategories are embedded in each of the key consideration areas throughout the plan. Leadership will
monitor the plan on a regular basis to identify needed adjustments or improvement opportunities when
protocols or processes require attention or refinement based on guidance and feedback. The team will also
begin to develop feedback mechanisms to capture real-time data. Staff feedback will be captured using an
extension of the 2020 “We're Listening” Staff Feedback Survey. The team will review best practices for other
workforce areas for consideration as it relates to business and job seekers. This information will be used during
the continuous improvement process.

For specific plan questions, contact Kendall Lenhares, One-Stop-Operator for East Cascades Works at 503-930-
7050 or klenhares@gmail.com or Melissa Barrett, Regional Program Manager for East Cascades Works at 541-
904-5033 or melissa@ecworks.org.
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SAFETY

COVID-19 — GENERAL

Signs and Symptoms

WorkSource Center staff are required to perform daily self-checks prior to working in the center. If staff
experience symptoms during the course of the workday, they are expected to immediately notify a supervisor
and exit the center.

WorkSource Center customers requesting an in-person appointment will be required to answer a list of
screening questions included in the Appointment Scheduling Template at the time the appointment is
scheduled. Upon arrival to the scheduled appointment, they will be required to answer a list of questions from
the Visitor’s Health Checklist.

Should a customer’s responses differ from the pre-appointment questionnaire, staff will require the customer
to reschedule the appointment for a future date, at least 14 days following, or offer a virtual or phone service
delivery option. Customers are prohibited from entering the building on the day of their scheduled appointment
if they do not pass/meet the criteria outlined on the Visitor’s Health Checklist.

Face Covering Protocols

WorkSource Center staff working inside the designated appointment areas will be required to wear a face
covering at all times. If staff do not have the required face covering, one will be provided. Staff with
documented medical conditions will be encouraged to work remotely and will not be assigned for in-person
appointments. NOTE: Current guidance instructs staff to wear CDC approved face coverings, at all times in the
WorkSource Center. Leadership will continue to monitor face covering guidance and adjust plans as appropriate.

WorkSource customers who qualify for in-person appointments are required to wear a face covering during
their appointment. This requirement will be communicated during appointment scheduling. If a customer does
not have the required face covering, one will be provided. Face covering must be in place, covering the mouth
and nose, prior to entry into the building. Customers refusing to wear a face covering will be asked to reschedule
their in-person appointment or invited to schedule a virtual or telephone service delivery meeting.

Contact Tracing Process

WorkSource staff are required to adhere to the WorkSource Center and appointment area schedule and may
not enter the center during unscheduled work times without consent from their direct supervisor. A staff log
will be maintained and monitored (attendance checks and periodic center walkthroughs) daily. The log will be
developed daily and monitored by the supervisor in charge to record any variance and ensure that all staff are
accounted for.

WorkSource customers will be monitored and maintained each day via a staff monitored appointment log for

designated appointment areas. The log will be developed daily taking all precautions to maintain customer
confidentiality (only name and customer number will be used as identifiers).
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Suspected Contamination Process
Local Leadership Teams have developed a standard process for suspected contamination of the appointment
areas.
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PHYSICAL DISTANCING

Entrance/Exit

Staff members assigned to the appointment area will be responsible for their scheduled appointments to ensure
only one staff member is escorting a customer to and from the entrance/exit points to the appointment area at
one time.

The Dalles: The center’s main entrance will be used as the entrance and exit point for customers.
Redmond: The main building entrance will be used as the entrance and exit point for customers.
Bend: The center’s main entrance will be used as the entrance and exit point for customers.
Klamath Falls: The center’s main entrance will be used as the entrance point for customers. The exit

door located in the designated appointment space with be used as the exit point.

Designated Appointment Space

The Dalles will utilize the River Rock room as the designated appointment area. This room offers the most space
for a physically distanced configuration and has computers for customer/staff use during appointments. Six feet
of distance between workspaces and signage to help enforce physical distance guidelines are marked
appropriately, and table-top plexiglass shields will be used during in-person appointments to further separate
staff and customers.

Redmond will utilize the Smith Rock room for Oregon Employment Department, Title 1B, and other partner
appointments. The Mountain Quail room will be used for Department of Human Services Self-Sufficiency and
Vocational Rehabilitation appointments. Both rooms provide the most space and are closest in proximity to the
main building and WorkSource Center entrances. Smith Rock provides the ability to set up two computers for
staff and customer use. Six feet of distance between workspaces and signage to help enforce physical distance
guidelines are marked appropriately, and table-top plexiglass shields will be used during in-person
appointments to further separate staff and customers.

Bend has the largest center in the region and has the most partner co-location to consider. They will use the
Billy Chinook room to accommodate all co-located partner appointments with the exception of Vocational
Rehabilitation. This space is large and may accommodate multiple appointments at one time. As community
needs increase in the future, it is important to identify a space that may provide the opportunity to add
additional appointment blocks of time to the schedule.

The Mirror Pond room has been identified as the appointment area specifically for Vocational Rehabilitation.
With multiple counselors located in Bend, and the need to accommodate support individuals who may
accompany a customer, the team felt a separate space would provide comfortable separation for staff and
double the weekly appointment capacity for the center. Six feet of distance between workspaces and signage
to help enforce physical distance guidelines are marked appropriately, and table-top plexiglass shields will be
used during in-person appointments to further separate staff and customers.

Klamath Falls will utilize their Learning Center conference room as the designated appointment area for the
center. This room is equipped with computers for staff and customer use. It provides a separate exit from the
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main entrance and is in the closest proximity to the main center entrance door. This ensures customers avoid
staff workspaces while in the center. Six feet of distance between workspaces and signage to help enforce
physical distance guidelines are marked appropriately, and table-top plexiglass shields will be used during in-
person appointments to further separate staff and customers.

Employee and Customer Flow

Staff not assigned to the designated appointment areas will be required to stay in assigned workspaces during
in-person appointment hours to avoid congestion of flow issues. Local Leadership Teams have designated
spaces in all four comprehensive centers that eliminate traffic into staff workspaces as much as is possible.

Restrooms

WorkSource East Cascades centers are located in both Oregon Employment Department owned/leased
buildings, and the Oregon Department of Human Services buildings. This differentiation makes it impossible to
standardize restroom access to the public region wide. Bend and Klamath Falls will allow customer restroom
access during appointments, one customer at a time. Accommodations for customers attending appointment
with necessary support staff will be made. Appropriate signage, physical distancing reminders and cleaning
protocols are put in place and align with current guidance.

The Dalles and Redmond have building restrooms managed by outside organizations and will continue to
provide customer access. Appropriate signage reminding staff and customers of recommended physical
distancing and cleaning protocols are in place.

Unnecessary Equipment and Furniture

All unnecessary furniture and equipment have been removed from appointment areas or is marked “not in use”
to discourage use. This eliminates concerns regarding space management, adherence to physical distancing
protocols, additional cleaning, and employee/customer flow.
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CLEANING GUIDELINES

General Staff Cleaning Guidelines

The Oregon Employment Department workgroup dedicated to identifying staff cleaning guidelines has provided
WorkSource East Cascades centers with general, standard cleaning guidelines that staff may refer to for all areas
of the center.

Entrance/Exit
Entrance and exit points in each of the four comprehensive centers will be regularly cleaned during appointment
hours.
e Security Officers will take an active role in the customer check-in and exiting process to ensure that
entrance and exit points have been wiped down after use in Bend and Klamath Falls.

o Staff will take an active role in the customer check-in and exiting process to ensure that entrance and
exit points have been wiped down after use in The Dalles and Redmond.

e Day Porter Service Personnel will provide an additional layer of support if the teams feel activation of
this service is necessary. Consistent cleaning of high touch areas will be regularly monitored by
leadership to understand if additional attention is necessary moving forward.

Designated Appointment Space

Each room designated for in-person appointments will be equipped with cleaning supplies and extra face
coverings and hand sanitizer. Staff utilizing these rooms will be responsible for cleaning after each appointment.
A laminated green/red sign to indicate if a space has been cleaned (green), or not cleaned (red) will be placed
at each appointment station. Staff will be responsible to ensure the sign is always in the green position prior to
an appointment, and in the red position if they leave the area and have not yet cleaned for the next customer.
This will signal to other staff not to utilize the station until they see the sign flipped to green, or they must clean
the area prior to use.

Restrooms
Cleaning supplies and signage are placed in each restroom to remind staff to clean common areas after each
use. This protocol has already been implemented in Bend and Klamath Falls.

In Scenario I, Bend and Klamath Falls will access day porter services to provide intermittent cleaning during
appointment hours to ensure designated customer restrooms are regularly cleaned.

The Oregon Department of Human Services shared buildings have restrooms where current protocols are in
place to address physical distancing, and cleaning. Customers will have access to these restrooms in both The
Dalles and Redmond.

Shared Equipment and Supplies

Staff are expected to clean shared equipment and supplies after each use. Supplies will be housed next to any
shared printers, fax machines and computers. Signage will also be visible to remind staff to clean after each
use. Shared supplies will be kept to an absolute minimum. Each partner utilizing the in-person appointment
areas will be expected to provide their own, single use pens/pencils for customers completing paperwork.
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Customer Check-In/Sanitation Stations

A check-in/sanitation station will be set up at the previously designated entrance/exit point in each of the four
comprehensive centers. This station will be managed by Security Officers or staff who will be responsible for
wiping the space clean after each customer check-in. This station will be equipped with face coverings, hand
sanitizer, disinfectant wipes and the appropriate safety and health questionnaires.
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SIGNANGE AND VISUAL TOOLS

Entrance/Exit

All centers will have appointment entrance/exit points clearly marked. To eliminate the risk of customer
confusion, staff will utilize the Appointment Scheduling Template to further prepare a customer for their visit.
This template will include parking information and appropriate entrance/exit instructions.

Restrooms
Cleaning supplies and signage are placed in each restroom to remind staff to clean common areas after each
use. This protocol has already been implemented in Bend and Klamath Falls.

The Oregon Department of Human Services shared buildings have restrooms that have current protocols in
place to address physical distancing and cleaning. Customers will have access to these restrooms in both The
Dalles and Redmond.

Shared Equipment and Supplies
Each piece of equipment and/or area that is considered shared or common will be equipped with signage to
remind staff to clean after each use.

Sanitation Station
Each check-in/sanitation station will be clearly marked as such and equipped with all supplies for cleaning as
appropriate.

Meeting or Appointment Areas

Each area will be clearly marked with maximum occupancy signage, cleaning reminders, signs and symptoms
identification documentation, and physical distancing reminders. Each appointment area will be equipped with
the previously mentioned green (clean and ready for use) or red (needs cleaning prior to use) signage.
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SAFETY COMMUNICATION

Staff to Local Leadership Team (LLT)

The Local Leadership Team understands the importance of communication at all levels of the local system. As a
result of the “We’re Listening” Staff Feedback Survey, leadership has committed to regularly engaging with
frontline staff to ensure they feel safe and have the most up-to-date information.

A new tool has been developed and implemented region wide. The “We’re Listening” Feedback Mechanism was
implemented in January of 2021. This tool offers a virtual space for staff to provide anonymous feedback and
suggestions for system improvement and safety considerations. The Local Leadership Team will regularly review
this feedback and provide staff communication regarding submissions.

Local Leadership Team (LLT) to Staff

To ensure regular and consistent information sharing from the Local Leadership Team meetings and the larger
Super Local Leadership Team meetings, area leaders have added a standing staff communication agenda item.
This item requires team discussion and sign-off to craft a message to all WorkSource staff regarding submissions
from the feedback mechanism and/or summary of the content of the local leadership meetings within 24 hours
of any monthly meeting.

Center Leadership Team to Workforce System Executive Team (WSET)

Issues or topics that require escalation to the Workforce System Executive Team (WSET) will be noted and
communicated by the One-Stop-Operator to WSET team staff, Julia  Steinberger at
julia.steinberger@oregon.gov.

Safety Committee

All four comprehensive center Safety Committees are actively engaged and meet regularly. There is
participation from all co-located partners, as well as representation from the Local Board. Meeting minutes are
captured and posted for staff to review.

This plan has been reviewed by the regional safety committees as indicated on the signature page. These teams
will continue to play an active role in leadership safety considerations and the implementation of new protocols

in each center.

As part of ongoing improvement efforts, the Local Leadership Team will continue to explore how the Safety
Committees may become more involved in on-going safety concerns and/or issues.
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OTHER SAFETY

On-Site Security

Commercial security contracts are in place for all four comprehensive centers. The Security Officer and their
role in scenario Il has been further defined in this plan’s safety and operational considerations under the staffing
plan.

Incident Reporting

Currently, the WSET is in the process of revising the incident reporting process to include one process reflective
of all partner requirements. It is unclear if this updated process will be complete by WorkSource East Cascades
targeted scenario Il reopening date. If the WSET releases a new process for incident reporting, the Local
Leadership Team will update this plan to reflect the new process and ensure all supervisory and frontline staff
are trained appropriately.

To eliminate the risk of stalling scenario Il, the Local Leadership Team will utilize the current incident reporting
process respective to their agency. All partners will be responsible for adhering to their appropriate process for
documenting and reporting an incident in the center and communication to appropriate parties.

Removal of Aggressive or Non-Compliant Customer

Currently, the WSET is in the process of revising the removal process to include one process reflective of all
partner requirements. It is unclear if this updated process will be complete by WorkSource East Cascades
targeted scenario Il reopening date. If the WSET releases a new process for customer removal, the Local
Leadership Team will update this plan to reflect the new process and ensure all supervisory and frontline staff
are trained appropriately.

To eliminate the risk of stalling scenario Il, the Local Leadership Team will utilize the current incident reporting
process respective to their agency. All partners will be responsible for adhering to their appropriate process for
documenting and reporting an incident in the center and communication to appropriate parties.

Staff Self-Care and Wellness

The Local Leadership Team is committed to providing self-care and mental health resources and/or
opportunities to staff as we continue to navigate this new and challenging work environment. Based on the
“We’re Listening” Staff Feedback Survey results, leadership has identified options that may be immediately
implemented and continually evaluated for improvement or additional opportunities. Recommendations
include:

e Identifying a designated decompression room in each of the four centers,

e Encouraging staff to take breaks when needed; and

e Providing a consistent feedback loop from staff to local leadership and leadership to staff to ensure their
concerns are being heard and addressed.

In addition, the Local Leadership Team has committed to encouraging and allowing staff to participate in state-
level trainings related to de-escalation, conflict resolution, trauma-informed care, or any other topic related to

the above staff requested training opportunities.
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Staff Safety Training

To augment the reopening plan and to provide staff with the necessary scenario Il training, the Local Leadership
Team has developed a Scenario Il Staff Training & Orientation Guide. All topics outlined in the reopening plan
are covered in the guide, including specific templates, and outlined protocols.

All staff will be required to review the WorkSource East Cascades Scenario Il Plan and the Staff Training &
Orientation Guide with their supervisor. Checklists must be signed by staff and supervisors and returned to the
Local Leadership Team indicating that staff have had the appropriate training and provided a space to ask
guestions and/or voice concerns prior to working in designated in-person appointment areas.
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OPERATIONS
(Specific to Designated Appointment Areas)

Appointment Hours

The Leadership Team has determined in-person appointment hours of operation will be standardized for the
smaller centers, while Bend will offer extended hours to provide more appointment opportunities for partners.

The Dalles:

Monday through Friday from 9:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.
Appointment time blocks at 9 a.m., 10:30 a.m., 1:30 p.m., 3:00 p.m.

Redmond:

Monday through Friday from 8:45 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.
Staggered appointment time blocks.

Schedule Draft: Scenario 1

Room 1 Room 2

Check In Appointment | Check Out Check In Appointment | Check Out
8:45am — 9am-10am | 10am - 9:15am - 9:45am — 10:45am -
9am 10:15am 9:30am 10:45am 11lam
10:15am - 10:30am - 11:30am - 11:15am - 11:30am - 12:30pm -
10:30am 11:30am 11:45am 11:30am 12:30pm 12:45pm
11:45am - 12pm-1pm | 1lpm - 12:45pm - 1pm-2pm 2pm -
12pm 1:15pm 1pm 2:15pm
1:15pm - 1:30pm - 2:30pm — 2:15pm - 2:30pm — 3:30pm —
1:30pm 2:30pm 2:45pm 2:30pm 3:30pm 3:45pm
2:45pm — 3pm —-4pm 4pm -

3pm 4:15pm
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Bend:

Monday through Friday from 8:45 a.m. to 4 p.m.

Staggered appointment time blocks.

Schedule Draft: Scenario 1

Room 1 Room 2

Check In Appointment | Check Out Check In Appointment | Check Out
8:45am — 9am -10am | 10am - 9:15am - 9:45am — 10:45am -
9am 10:15am 9:30am 10:45am 11lam
10:15am - 10:30am - 11:30am - 11:15am - 11:30am - 12:30pm -
10:30am 11:30am 11:45am 11:30am 12:30pm 12:45pm
11:45am - 12pm-1pm | 1pm-— 12:45pm - 1pm-2pm 2pm —
12pm 1:15pm 1pm 2:15pm
1:15pm - 1:30pm - 2:30pm — 2:15pm - 2:30pm — 3:30pm —
1:30pm 2:30pm 2:45pm 2:30pm 3:30pm 3:45pm
2:45pm — 3pm-4pm 4pm —

3pm 4:15pm

Klamath Falls:

Monday through Friday from 9:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.
Appointment time blocks at 9 a.m., 10:30 a.m., 1:30 p.m., 3:00 p.m.

Appointments may not exceed 60 minutes in length in any center. Staff are encouraged to schedule
appointments in the 45-60 minutes timeframe. The plan may be altered to provide flexibility for scheduling
lengthier intake appointments. Region wide, this plan allows for up to 120 appointments per week with
additional room to grow as community needs continue to evolve. The Leadership Team will regularly revisit
appointment hours of operation in each center and adjust as appropriate.
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GENERAL STAFFING PLAN

The Leadership Team has taken on the responsibility of developing and regularly monitoring staffing plans for
all four comprehensive centers. Each co-located partner was tasked with providing a minimum number of
appointment times required to accommodate in-person delivery of services. The numbers provided were based
on data and anticipated need. Partners are responsible for regular monitoring and assessment of evolving needs
based on economic climate. Regular communication will be required to ensure schedules and staffing plans are
adjusted appropriately.

Roles and Responsibilities

WorkSource staff who have scheduled appointments are required to assist and monitor their customer for the
duration of their appointment. This includes escorting customers to and from entrance/exit points. In The
Dalles and Redmond, staff will be responsible for the customer check-in process, while Bend and Klamath Falls
customers will be attended to by the Security Officer assigned to the center.

A Leadership Team member will be assigned as the direct point of contact for staff in the centers. This
responsibility will be shared between all co-located partner leads to ensure that there is no wrong door should
an issue or need arise.

Security Officers will participate in the check-in process for customer appointments in Bend and Klamath Falls.
They will be stationed at the check-in/sanitation station located at the main entrance for each center. This role
will be responsible for:

e Customer appointment confirmation,

e Delivery of the health and safety questionnaire; and

e Supply the appropriate face covering to customers if needed.

Standard Appointment Space Layout

Leadership has determined that all designated appointment areas be set-up in a standardized way to
accommodate four appointments per day, and only one appointment at a time. Areas will have 1-2 rectangular
tables, 2 chairs placed (one on either side of the table), a maximum of 2 computers and a tabletop plexiglass
divider to be placed between parties. The only exception to this will be the Mirror Pond room in Bend as this
room is set up for virtual engagements and has a large oval conference table, rather than workstations. All
chairs are spaced 6 feet apart.

Scheduling Tool
All four comprehensive WorkSource centers will use the Team Up scheduling tool for scenario Il. This tool was
utilized pre-COVID in The Dalles, Redmond and Bend.

Customer Appointment Criteria

Leadership adapted a form originally created by the WorkSource Salem team for staff use when scheduling an
in-person appointment. This template includes COVID-19 health, safety, and exposure questions and identifies
if there is an alternative to an in-person customer appointment prior to scheduling. The template also includes
a script of information that must be communicated prior to the customer appointment.
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Furniture and Equipment

Appointment areas will be equipped with only what is necessary as it relates to furniture and equipment to
accommodate in-person appointments. Additional needs will be the responsibility of the scheduling agency and
must meet the COVID-19 health and safety state and federal guidance at the time of the appointment.

Operational Communication

Leaderships teams meet monthly and have standing agenda items to discuss operations. All information will be
assessed to determine if information must be escalated to WSET for remedy or simply needs to be synthesized
for all WorkSource staff distribution.

Staff Operational Training

To augment the reopening plan and to provide staff with the necessary scenario Il training, the Local Leadership
Team has developed a Scenario Il Staff Training & Orientation Guide. All topics outlined in the reopening plan
are covered in the guide, including specific templates, and outlined protocols.

All staff will be required to review the WorkSource East Cascades Scenario Il Plan and the Staff Training &
Orientation Guide with their supervisor. Checklists must be signed by staff and supervisors and returned to the
Local Leadership Team indicating that staff have had the appropriate training and provided a space to ask
questions and/or voice concerns prior to working in designated in-person appointment areas.
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SERVICE DELIVERY

SCENARIO Il OVERVIEW

Leadership from all co-located partners have determined that scenario Il service delivery model will be reflective
of community needs and COVID-19 conditions. This model will be reviewed regularly and adjusted based on
data, state and federal guidance, staff feedback and vaccination rollout.

Co-Located Partner Service Model
Oregon Employment Department (OED) has identified specific service needs that require the use of
appointment space for more barriered individuals that do not otherwise have the ability to access services.

e SNAP Training and Employment Program (STEP)

e Migrant Seasonal Farmworker (MSFW)

e Re-employment Services and Eligibility Assessment (RESEA)

e Veteran Services

e NCRC

WIOA Title 1B providers are currently providing the full scope of services to clients in alternative spaces or
virtually and will continue to do so while reintegrating staff into the scenario Il plan to offer additional alternative
space for in-person appointments.

e (Career Services

e Training Services

e On-the-job Training

e Youth Services

Resource Room

Leadership has elected to discontinue the traditional resource room offering or open computer access to
customers in scenario Il. Customers needing access to computers will be allowed to do so with staff
assistance/supervision during their scheduled in-person appointment and not to exceed the 90-minute
maximum time limit.

NCRC
Leadership has elected to exclude NCRC training/testing during scenario Il. The team will continue to identify
alternative solutions to make this proctored test available in the future.

Curbside Services

To provide customers a safe space to access services where virtual delivery was not feasible, WorkSource East
Cascades has been providing “curbside services” to customers on an as needed basis and as a last resort.
Customers who have scheduled a curbside service with staff are asked to call their staff person upon arrival.
Staff meets the customer in the parking lot wearing the required face covering and maintaining six feet of
physical distance during the interaction. WorkSource East Cascades will continue this practice in all four centers
and reserve appointment space as needed for in-depth, one-on-one engagements.
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Other Partners and Referrals
The teams have worked through referring to semi or non-co-located partners in a COVID environment and will
continue to refine these processes. Partners include:

e The Department of Human Services Self-Sufficiency

e The Department of Human Services Vocational Rehabilitation

e Oregon Commission for the Blind

e Job Corps

e Other Community Partners

Building Partner Considerations
The Leadership Team feels it is necessary to address how building partners will be integrated into the scenario
Il reopening plan. As an example, in Bend, the Office of Administrative Hearings is a building partner and has
historically utilized shared spaces in the center. Reintroduction of non-WorkSource building partners may
impact scheduling and customer flow. The Leadership Team has developed a standard, region-wide approach
to engage with these partners and accommodate needs in scenario Il.

e Building partner additions to the safety committees,

e Integrating building partner needs into the center schedules and partner friendly scheduling tool; and

e Inviting building partner staff and leadership to participate in scenario Il training and orientation.

Service Delivery Communication

Leadership meets monthly and have standing agenda items to discuss operations. All information will be
assessed to determine if information must be escalated to WSET for remedy or simply needs to be synthesized
for all WorkSource staff distribution.

Staff Service Delivery Training

To augment the reopening plan and to provide staff with the necessary scenario Il training, the Local Leadership
Team has developed a Scenario Il Staff Training & Orientation Guide. All topics outlined in the reopening plan
are covered in the guide, including specific templates, and outlined protocols.

All staff will be required to review the WorkSource East Cascades Scenario Il Plan and the Staff Training &
Orientation Guide with their supervisor. Checklists must be signed by staff and supervisors and returned to the
Local Leadership Team indicating that staff have had the appropriate training and provided a space to ask
guestions and/or voice concerns prior to working in designated in-person appointment areas.
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SCENARIO Il SAFETY CHECKLIST

This checklist must be completed by leadership prior to scenario Il reopening in each of the WorkSource East
Cascades comprehensive centers.

Scenario Il - Virtual + Phone + limited in-person, by appointment
WorkSource East Cascades Scenario Il Safety Checklist

Date Initials

R A A () [ ] R A ()

Signs and symptoms posted on staff and public entrance.

Public/visitor symptom check list adopted/implemented

Contact Tracing daily protocol adopted/implemented

Appropriate face covering guidance and protocol have been adopted/implemented

PHYSICAL DISTANCING & LAYOUT

Rooms used for individual appointments are reconfigured to restrict capacity to meet
physical distancing requirements.

Physical distancing reminders are in place (marking for 6 ft distance, arrows to direct
flow, etc.)

One-way direction flow implemented where possible with signage posted.

WorkSource Center staff are trained to physical distancing and layout guidance and
protocols.

WORKSOURCE CENTER & APPOINTMENT SPACE CLEANING

Oregon Employment Department cleaning contracts are in place to include COVID deep
cleaning requirements in response to contamination and have the addition of day porter
services available if needed.

Sanitizing station is set-up and stocked in designated appointment spaces.

Green/Red laminated cleaning visual tool are placed in each appointment
workstation/pod.

WorkSource Staff are trained to all new and existing cleaning protocols for designated
appointment space.

SAFETY SIGNAGE
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STAFF & CUSTOMER SAFETY PROTOCOLS

Appointment spaces are stocked with face coverings and appropriate face covering
signage

Appointment spaces are retrofitted with tabletop plexiglass dividers at each
appointment workspace in both centers.

WorkSource Staff are trained to all new and existing signage for the center, specifically
the additions to designated appointment space.

SAFETY COMMUNICATION

The Leadership Teams meets regularly and has added standard safety communication
agenda items to their agenda and a process for communicating information to staff.

The Leadership Teams has implemented the Staff Feedback Link Tool (virtual
observation/recommendation & feedback box) for staff to voice any safety related
concerns or improvement recommendation.

Safety Committees have added Scenario |l safety related agenda items to their standing
agendas and will elevate any issues or concerns immediately to their Leadership Teams.

STAFF TRAINING

All WorkSource staff have reviewed the East Cascades Scenario Il Reopening plan and
the Staff Training & Orientation Guidebook.

All WorkSource staff have met one-on-one or in a team environment to review the
information with their direct supervisors.

All WorkSource staff have been trained on new and/or changed protocols, specifically in
the designated appointment room spaces in each center. This includes a walk-through
and full orientation of each space.

All WorkSource staff have a clear understanding of roles and responsibilities in Scenario

HVAC SYSTEMS

All four WorkSource Centers HVAC systems have been certified to meet or exceed OSHA
standards for filtration.

Walk through of center complete and signage reflects what is outlined in the scenario Il
reopening plan.
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